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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

PRESIDENT STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to shareholders the
annual results of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

| am taking this opportunity to express our gratitude to the Group’s staff for their

contributions enabling the Group to work through a tough year.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2015, turnover of the Group was reported as
HK$531.1 million (2014: HK$618.3 million), representing a decrease of 14.1%
when compared with last financial year. Gross profit decreased by 26.5% to
HK$64.5 million (2014: HK$87.8 million).

o The loss before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation was HK$22.5
million (2014: restated profit of HK$16.5 million), representing a decrease

of HK$39.0 million when compared to the last corresponding period.

o The loss before interest and tax of the Group was HK$29.2 million (2014:
restated profit of HK$8.8 million), representing a decrease of HK$38.0

million when compared to the last corresponding period.

o After the non-recurring items such as impairment of goodwill of HK$22.6
million and withholding of dividend tax of HK$8.1 million, the net loss of
the Group was HK$39.7 million (2014: restated profit HK$8.2 million),
representing a decrease of HK$47.9 million when compared to the last

year.

The Board of Directors does not recommend any payment of a final dividend in

respect of the year ended 31 March 2015.

At the board meeting held on 28 November 2014, the Board of Directors
declared the payment of a special dividend of HK$0.05 per ordinary share
payable to shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of Members of
the Company on 12 December 2014, amounting to the total of approximately

HK$21.9 million. The special dividend was paid on 5 January 2015.
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At 31 March 2015, the Group’s current assets amounted to HK$292.7 million
(2014: HK$279.4 million) and the shareholders’ equity was HK$186.5 million
(2014: restated HK$239.8 million). The current liabilities were HK$156.8 million
(2014: HK$210.4 million).

The inventory level increased to HK$116.3 million (2014: HK$115.5 million).
Average stock turnover was around 93 days based on closing stock at 31
March 2015 (2014: 79 days). The trade receivables (excluding notes receivable)
decreased by HK$8.6 million to HK$80.8 million (2014: HK$89.4 million).

The year end cash and bank balances were HK$71.7 million (2014: HK$55.5
million). Total available banking facilities of the Group were approximately
HK$141.3 million (2014: HK$155.7 million), of which HK$63.5 million were
available for use (2014: HK$42.7 million). There were no finance lease obligations
outstanding as at 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

defined as total borrowings after netting off cash and cash equivalents (net

The gearing ratio, which was

debt), to total capital (being total equity plus net debt) was 1.7% (2014: restated
17.2%).

The Group’s assets were mostly financed by shareholders’ equity, trade
payables and bank borrowings. Trade payables were repayable within one year.
Bank borrowings comprised trade financing repayable within one year and term
loans repayable in installments of 2 to 5 years based on original contractual

maturity.

Borrowings were mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US
dollars, Canadian dollars and Renminbi. The Group matched the payments and
receipts of foreign currency arising from routine purchases and sales to control
and minimise the financial costs and exchange rate risk. Most of the Group’s
borrowings were interest bearing at floating rates which were based on the
HIBOR rate or London LIBOR rate. As substantial part of trade payables and
bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars, the exchange
rate risk of the Group is not expected to be material. The Group did not use

derivative financial instruments for speculative purpose.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

At 21 August 2014, the Group entered into an agreement for the disposal of a
subsidiary and its assets of industrial park at Hi-tech Industrial Zone at Heyuan,
Guangdong Province for a cash consideration of approximately HK$126.1
million. After inclusion of non-cash benefit, and deduction of the net book value
of the disposed assets and the related costs of disposal including profession
fees of HK$7.8 million, the net gain on the disposal of industrial park at Hi-
tech Industrial Development Zone at Heyuan after these expenses was HK$19.3
million before the PRC capital gain tax. The subsidiary mainly held the industrial
park at Heyuan, Guangdong Province, the PRC. As the Group discontinued
the business of manufacturing of consumer electronics during the financial year
ended 31 March 2013, a large portion of the industrial park was unutilized.
Although the production activities of the remaining manufacturing business had
been steady, the utilization of that industrial park remained at low level. The
Group therefore considered that this disposal represented a good opportunity to
realize the Group’s investment, to release the associated tied funding, and can
also reduce substantial future expenses in the real estate taxes and maintenance
expenses. The disposal was completed on 28 October 2014. The net proceeds
from the disposal after deduction of related expenses have been used as general

working capital of the Group and for dividend distributions.

The Group did not repurchase any ordinary shares in the open market.

At the annual general meeting held on 12 September 2014, shareholders duly
passed a special resolution to adopt a share premium reduction. Accordingly,
the Company offset its entire accumulated losses with the share premium of
approximately HK$165.4 million. The excessive share premium of approximately
HK$67.8 million was credited to the contributed surplus. According to the law
of Bermuda, the Company can make a distribution out of contributed surplus
provided that the Company is, or would after the payment, able to pay its
liabilities as they become due or the realisable value of the company’s assets

exceeds its liabilities.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The Group was engaged in the following major businesses:

— Electronic Products Manufacturing;

— Personal Computer Products Distribution; and

— Electronic Components Distribution.
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For the reported financial year, the Group faced a decrease in both turnover
and gross profit. The personal computer market in Canada was declining rapidly
particularly in second half of year and the demand for electronic components
slowed down in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group put considerable effort to

consolidate the customer network and product marketing.

Electronic Products Manufacturing

The turnover of this segment decreased to HK$132.5 million (2014: HK$159.1
million), representing a decrease of 16.7% when compared to last year.

In view of the slowdown of electronic markets and the lengthening of payment
from some customers, the Group had applied tighter control over overdue
accounts to minimize credit risk from less creditable customers. This policy
has led to a lower business volume with those customers. The Group has also

ceased the operation of the non-profit making speaker box business unit.

During the year, the Group has re-engineered the operation of its factory to
enable to a more efficient production flow. Besides replacing labor efforts with
automation machinery, the management team also improved the efficiency by

introducing new production process and a tighter control of logistics expenses.

The Group focused on the professional production of telecommunication
modules in mobile phone infrastructures as well as the production and assembly
for industrial and commercial purpose electronics products. The plant is
equipped with SMT production lines with nitrogen filled reflow furnaces and

precision quality assurance equipment in antistatic clean room.

Personal Computer Products Distribution

Turnover of this segment was HK$234.9 million (2014: HK$282.2 million) which

represented a decrease of 16.8% in the reported year.

The Group has been in the market of personal computer systems, computer
parts and peripherals in North America for more than 20 years. Products in
this segment include motherboards, display cards, hard disk drives, optical
storage devices, computer cases, power supplies, software, memories, desktop

computers, notebook computers, tablet computers and computer accessories.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

In this segment, the main personal computer and related components market
in Canada has retracted during the year. The quantity demand of most of the
products dropped significantly. Although the Group could maintain turnover of
some major products, the others had decreased to a level resulting in a 20%
gross profit decrease in the whole segment when compared with last financial
year. The general market sentiment became low and a further decrease in
demand is expected in the coming year. Since there was a trend that consumers
began to purchase directly from manufacturers through internet instead of
shopping in retail shops, the role of PC distributors is diminishing. Customers
from this segment is expected to be migrated to the Group’s web sales. In view
of these phenomena, the Group has re-examined the business prospect and
assessed the value of the goodwill in the Group’s financial statements. After
careful consideration and review of the business valuation prepared by external
appraiser, the management has decided to write off all the goodwill related to

this segment.

Electronic Components Distribution

Turnover of the electronic components distribution segment was HK$163.7
million (2014: HK$177.0 million) representing a decrease of 7.5% when
compared with the last financial year. In order to have a prosperous growth in
the future years, the Group has spent considerable resources and expenses to
develop new distribution lines and to further enhance the distribution networks
in the PRC. However the competition in PRC market was strong and overall
demand was declining, and thus the contribution of these developments was
delayed.

The Group has more than 30 years of experience in the business of distributing
of electronic components. This segment has a solid base in Hong Kong and the

Group has penetrated into the PRC market for many years.

In this segment, the business is to mainly act as the authorised distributor of
electronics components of renowned brands such as Rohm, Lite-on, Arnold
Magnetics, Diodes, SDC, Everlight, PFC Device, AEM, Chino-Excel Technology
(CET) and the Group’s own manufacturing brand COS and TIP. Major customers
are manufacturers located in Hong Kong and the PRC. Products of this segment
include diodes, transistors, integrated circuits (IC), power management devices,

optical-electronics and illuminations as well as discrete components.
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FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group expects a slowdown in the electronic market in the coming year and
will develop new product lines with reasonable gross margin and consistent
demands. The Group will continue to improve the cost effectiveness of all its

operations.

In the segment of Electronics Products Manufacturing, the consistent increase
of minimum wages and social insurance in the PRC created a heavy burdens in
the cost of productions. The Group will continue to invest in the development
of automations to ease the reliance on labor forces and, at the same time, to
yield more consistent and precise quality products. The further enhancement
of production processes will also increase the efficiency of the production. The
possibility of new partners joining the manufacturing segment in the coming
financial year and will bring the Group to a new era of business. The Group
expects these new opportunities will bring in reasonable new orders in the

coming fiscal year and help stabilise our business performance.

In the Diode manufacturing business unit, demand from customers is increasing.
New production facilities of the Diode workshop have already been installed and
the capacity of the production is expected to increase by 30%. New customers
in plastic injection will further improve the performance of this unit. Growth in

these business units will bring moderate contribution in the coming financial year.

Business in the personal computer business is experiencing a downturn and may
last for a certain period of time. The Group is putting great efforts in sourcing
new product lines as well as new channels of distribution. Diversification to
business other than personal computer will be the top mission of this segment.
Internet sales of this segment is under construction and expect to be in place by
the next fiscal year. The Group is also planning to further penetrate into the field

of tablet computers and smartphone segments.

In the segment of Electronic Components Distribution, the Group continues to
explore new distributorship with renowned new principal suppliers. The segment
will continue to expand the markets of optical electronics, illuminations, power
management devices as well as active component. By the introduction of new
ERP software, the Group is improving the inventories management and customer
management which will reduce the inventory risk and will enable more customer

penetration in the coming years.
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After the disposal of the land and building in Heyuan factory site, PRC, the
Group will enjoy a rent free period for a number of years after the disposal.
The disposal will further decrease the maintenance cost of the factory and will

strengthen the financial position of this segment.

The management believes that the coming fiscal year will be challenging but

under control.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The board of the Company has been informed by Mr. Lau Tak Wan (“Mr.
Lau”), a controlling shareholder, the executive director and president of the
Company that he, Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky and their controlled companies
(the “Selling Shareholders”) and a purchaser who was an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) on 29 April 2015, pursuant
to which the Selling Shareholders conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire in aggregate 241,221,529 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 55.17% of the issued capital
of the Company as at the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement for a
consideration of approximately HK$276.0 million (equivalent to HK$1.144 per
share).

On the same day, the Company entered into a disposal agreement (the
“Disposal Agreement”) with a company owned by Mr. Lau (the “Disposal
Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell
the subsidiaries holding the business segments of electronics components
distribution, personal computer products distribution and the central
management and property holdings,. As such, the Disposal Purchaser is a
connected person of the Company and the Disposal constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). As one of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Disposal is more than 75%, the
Disposal constitutes a very substantial disposal for the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules.
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73(‘:23 FE=A=+—8 " £8# Bﬁﬁﬁm/\ﬁ%ﬁé\ At 31 March 2015, the Group employed a total of approximately 600
(ZE—FE=A=Z+—8 : tE~TZEE)  HMH  employees (31 March 2014: 760 employees) located in Hong Kong, Canada
E\/ CMERRERA and the PRC.

E@Z%ﬁ@ﬂﬂl%ﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&iﬁfEUEII{’E%EE The Group’s remuneration policy is in line with the prevailing market
DEBHmETE - ¥ E2HFMNeETENES - &2  practices and is determined on the basis of performance and experience of
};z E/\M%%ETB—*FW%E —RREEBRHEI  AIZEASE  the individuals. Sales personnel are remunerated by salaries and incentives
T4 - BERR T Iz B REARETG - £B7J8  in accordance with the achievement of their sales target. General staff are
?mf,&ﬁ%ﬁjz NEENEBERINETIEESES - offered year-end discretionary bonuses, which are based on the divisional
performance and individual appraisals. The Group also provides a Mandatory

Provident Fund or ORSO scheme and medical benefits to all Hong Kong

employees.

EBBIRMEZE RPN IEREBEEEANLINGBAE  The Group is committed to devote more resources in providing internal and
Al BRTERELFEEN  SEEEHESERHIE  external training to the employees. In addition to sending staff to participate
BWB2IHI01SO9000 MEE R AL HEFIZ - It in seminars and lectures, the Group continues recommending that qualified
EEMR T SIRMES EELREREEME - AR  staff take part in professional courses such as the 1ISO9000 Quality Systems.
AIRASECEEEN - The training programs not only enhance employees’ career development and

professional knowledge, but also contribute to enhancing the management

system of the Group.

9 aRNEmEERAERQA
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Turnover (Continuing
operations)

Turnover (Discontinued
operations)
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Profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets
Share capital

Share premium and
other reserves

Shareholders’ equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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10

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last five years.

—ZE-—-1 —F—q —F—= —EF—= —F——
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FET FHET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(&%) (&71)

(restated) (restated)
531,126 618,300 547,916 643,016 713,445
— — 500,246 765,601 1,067,565
531,126 618,300 1,048,162 1,408,617 1,781,010
(39,724) 8,175 (171,008) 8,786 8,194
355,595 454,434 454,360 817,513 868,325
169,079 214,597 229,633 439,049 497,306
186,516 239,837 224,727 378,464 371,019
43,724 43,724 39,424 31,539 30,394
142,577 195,898 185,088 346,976 340,651
186,301 239,622 224,512 378,515 371,045
215 215 215 (51) (26)
186,516 239,837 224,727 378,464 371,019

Note:

The financial summary of years 2013 and 2014 are restated due to the changes in accounting

policies from year 2015 (Note 2.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements).



MM E Financial Summary

HFEMBEBRER FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

EEFRE
Net Assets
B&EET

HK$ million

S
Turnover
B&EET
HKS$ million
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—E-IFERIEXRBEI CEXE
TURNOVER BY
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS SEGMENT FOR 2015

AN B R E A8
Personal computer
products distribution (44%)

TFERNE
Electronic products
manufacturing (25%)

B TR
Electronic components
distribution (31%)

TE-AFERGBES S CEXER
TURNOVER BY
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT FOR 2015

BoM
Europe (6%)
Hi T MER
Other Asian Countries (1%)
BB
Hong Kong (14%) \
JEEM
North America
(52%)
B A B
Mainland China (27 %)
R
Turnover
i1 —Z—m
2015 2014
FETT FEr
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT A8 Electronic components distribution 163,741 176,993
EFEMRE Electronic products manufacturing 132,525 159,062
A B RS E AR5 Personal computer products distribution 234,860 282,245
531,126 618,300

AENEEZERARDA 12
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®3) EREEEZRR

(4) HEVMBGERFERYE  ERERERZ - X
ZRIERIEEER
(5) ERHANEERE - RREE  MBEREE

R2ERF &

6) MEEERRERT -

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
good corporate governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’
value.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2015, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Model
Code”).
directors of the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with the

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the

required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid
to the growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of
the Board are to:

(1) establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

2) determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives
of the Group;

(3) monitor management performance;

(4) approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals,
key funding and investment proposals;

(5) oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,
risk management, financial reporting and compliance; and

(6) assume responsibility for corporate governance.

13 aRNEmEERAERQA
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3,000,001 % T % 4,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 7T & 3,000,000 % 7T
1,000,001 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T
Z% 1,000,000 % 7T Nil —
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HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$1,000,000

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for the leadership, control and overall
strategic development of the Group, as well as overseeing internal control,
financial performance, overall management and operations of the Group. The
Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who is responsible
for implementing the Group’s business strategies and managing the daily
business operations.

The Board comprises five executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve annual
and interim results, and to review the business operation and the internal control
system of the Group. Apart from these regular meetings, Board meetings are
also held to approve major or special issues.

Five Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Given the nature and business objectives of the Company, the Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. List of directors and their biographical details are set out on
pages 26 to 29.

REMUNERATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF KEY
MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of key management (including all
Directors and senior management as disclosed in section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report) for the year ended
31 March 2015 fell within the following bands:

A
Number of individual
2015 2014
1 1
1 1
6 7
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Members of the Board, number of Board meetings held and the attendance of

each member during the year are set out as follows:

BE-Z-AF=ZA=+—HLEE

HEBITHE R

Meeting attended/held during
the year ended 31 March 2015

Members of the Board

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho

Mr. CHONG Wing Kam, James

Mr. FUNG Wai Ching

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

BOARD MEETINGS

REXE

EEg General
Board Meeting
5/5 11
5/5 11
5/5 11
5/5 0/1
5/5 11
5/5 11
5/5 11
5/5 11

The executive directors meet on a regular basis to discuss the ordinary business

of the Company. Board meetings are held to discuss the overall development,

operation, financial performance, interim results, annual results and other

business of the Company that requires approval from the Board. Reasonable

notice has been given to Board members to give them an opportunity to attend.

All Board members are provided with relevant documentation covering the

subject matter of the board meetings. Board members are also provided with

sufficient information in a timely manner to review and consider matters to be

discussed at Board meetings. The Company utilises telephone conferencing for

Directors who are not able to attend in person.

15
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a dedicated, diligent and
proactive manner with reasonable prudence. They have executed their duties
in accordance with statutory requirements, the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws”) and the Listing Rules. All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
corporate matters of the Company and provided sufficient time and attention to
all significant issues of Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief executive

officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. LAU Tak Wan is the Chairman of the Board and the president of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, the role of the president and the chief
executive officer is the same. The Board considers that the present structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for efficient
and effective business planning and execution. Hence, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the shareholders of the Company that Mr. LAU Tak Wan
will continue to assume the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the president
of the Company. However, the Company will review the current structure as and
when it becomes appropriate in future.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors bring independent judgment to the
Board. Each independent non-executive director sent a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that all independent non-
executive directors have met the qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications and experience
to ensure they are capable to perform their duties and protect the interests of
the stakeholders. Every newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of the Group’s
business and operation, his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

Under the Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-election. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have not appointed for a specific term
of office, which constitutes a deviation from A.4.1 of the Code. However, all
independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.

According to the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following Annual General Meeting
of the Company. Furthermore, each Director, including those appointed for
a specific term or holding office as Chairman and/or Managing Director, are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
would provide a comprehensive induction package covering the summary of
the responsibilities and legal obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed
company, the Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors would be arranged whenever necessary.

During the year, all directors and Company Secretary confirmed that they have
complied with the code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the board on, among other things, the Company’s policy and structure for
the remuneration of all directors and senior management of the Company
and review the specific remuneration packages for all executive directors and
senior management of the Company. The remuneration package for Directors
and senior management are determined by reference to the skill, experience,
performance, contribution to the Company and the prevailing market condition.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continueq)

HEERRE

ZEEEENRY

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Remuneration Committee: No. of Meeting
Independent non-executive directors

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing (Chairman) 11

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

Executive director
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to:

(1) review the structure, size and composition of the Board (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular basis and make

recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorships;
(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(4) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the chairman and the president (chief executive);

and

(5) where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting why they believe the individual should be elected and

the reasons why they consider the individual to be independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continueq)

The Nomination Committee monitors and reviews the diversity policy of the
Board members. The Company recognises that diversity of the Board members
provides a balance of skill, experience and professional knowledge for the
Company’s business and future development. The diversity policy is achieved by
consideration of various aspects, including but not limited gender, age, cultural
and educational backgrounds, professional knowledge and experience with the
business of the Company. The ultimate decision on selection of candidates will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidate will bring
to the board.

HEEERE

ZEESERE

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Nomination Committee: No. of Meeting
Executive director

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (Chairman) i7al

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT i7al
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice
and recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee is also authorised to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant

experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of the Audit Committee, number of Audit Committee meetings held

and the attendance of each member during the year are set out as follows:

HEERRE

EREEEERRY

No. of meetings

attended/No. of

Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee: meetings held

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed the annual financial statements with the auditor and reviewed
the unaudited interim financial statements, with recommendations to the

Board for approval;

2) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and policies as well as

assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

(3) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and discussed the relevant
issues including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk

management functions;

(4) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory
requirements;
(5) considered and recommended the appointment, re-appointment and

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;

(6) discussed with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and

reporting obligations; and

(7) reviewed and monitored external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensure the timely publication of the

financial statements of the Group.
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
provided the following services to the Group and their respective fees charged
are set out as follows:

WER &R

Type of services Fees charged
FET

HK$’000

Audit services for the Group 1,903
Taxation services 37
Total 1,940

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods in
accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements. In preparing the financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2014 and for the year ended
31 March 2015, the directors have adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently. The financial statements for the reporting year have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on
pages 38 to 39 in the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and is
committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. The effectiveness of the internal control system was also

discussed on a semi-annual basis with the Audit Committee.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

The Group’s internal control system encompasses its policies, processes, tasks,
and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

(1) to facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational,
and other risks with a view of achieving business objectives. This

financial, compliance

includes the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from loss
and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified and managed;

(2) to help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external reporting;
and

(3) to help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and

also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct communication with the
Company. Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may write directly
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business, 11th Floor, Block G, East Sun Industrial Centre, 16 Shing Yip Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, or they may send emails to daiwa@daiwahk.com. The
Company Secretary will direct the questions to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the shareholders can be addressed
directly to the Company’s branch registrar, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed
on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that

shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will attend
AGMs to answer shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

Should shareholders wish to call a special general meeting, it must be convened
according to the Company’s Bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Any 2 or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company can, in writing to the Board, request a special
general meeting to be called by the Board to transact any business
specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify the purpose of
the meeting, should be delivered to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. If the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting within twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates to its shareholders through announcements
and annual and interim reports published in its website http://www.daiwahk.
com/news. Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board in writing sent to the
principal office of the Company at 11th Floor, Block G, East Sun Industrial
Central, 16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The directors,
Company Secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. All shareholders are also
encouraged to attend general meetings of the Company to discuss matters
relating to the Group. At general meetings of the Company, the Directors answer
questions from the shareholders.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws (“Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended 31 March
2015. A latest version of the Constitutional Documents can be downloaded from
the websites of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan

President

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the electronic components distribution, electronic products

manufacturing, and personal computer products distribution.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating profit by
reportable segments for the year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 40.

The Board of Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2015. During the year, a special dividend of
HK$0.05 per share totalling approximately HK$21,862,000 was declared and
paid.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 are set out

in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately HK$118,197,000 (2014: Nil).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$210,000 (2014: HK$20,000) during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws and
there was no restriction against such right under the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five years until 31 March 2015 is set out on pages 10 to 11.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2015, sales to the five largest customers of the
Group in total accounted for approximately 19% of the Group’s total turnover,
with the largest customer accounted for about 13%. The five largest suppliers
of the Group together in total accounted for approximately 23% by value of the
Group’s total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounted for
about 8%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho

Mr. CHONG Wing Kam, James

Mr. FUNG Wai Ching

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho, Mr. FUNG Wai Ching and Dr. LIU Ngai Wing retire by
rotation in accordance with clause 99 of the Company’s bye-laws and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The terms of office of the directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan, aged 65, is the founder and the President of the Group. Mr.
Lau graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in Sociology and has more than 30 years’ management
and production experience in the electronics industry. Prior to founding the
Group, Mr. Lau had over 6 years’ experience in running his own business in
the electronics industry. He is responsible for the overall corporate planning,
strategic development and marketing of the Group.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky, aged 58, is the spouse of Mr. LAU Tak Wan.
Ms. Chan is the Vice-president of the Group. Also she is the Director of
Administration and Finance responsible for administration, human resources and
finance of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1998, Ms. Chan has over 20
years of experience in accounting and financial management and at the same
time running her own business for more than 10 years.



it
i3S
%H_
Iff
i

Report of the Directors

BEERSREBAEZBAAER @)

HITES(E)

REZELE  AtHR - BEERAEEZEHANE
E UVEEAKEBRZMSRBEEFIHRMTZE
o REAR—NANZFENMARER  HHEBEB=1T%
REE  PERIEEMNOEF R 2HELR - RE
EMBEEZ %R BN\ TEROPERBERE 2
MRREHEF TN - WREM ORI dem - B
Rk EB RIS E PR -

HEERERSEAE I ZhR  RAARIRES B BIRE
EREEZEEDES - HAEEREM DeVry Institute of
Technology < HHAMEBERAMEREFLIEEHK o i
%2 L T2 Ontario Association of Certified Engineering
Technicians and Technologists (OACETT) 2 #if& T 12
R o 1% & A Window NT&NoveII Netware TF2f -
%““80-9001 ZETAFRERHS  BANAREBESK
BREFEZ AORBETHEGE - BEAEEETITESE

FEB-THAFNE2ERLR R_TT=FMAREHE
ZE O HEEGAEBME  AE - MRS EEERE

BE IH8TRE AHBE ESRENTRNER -
AEEHHE EESRERIEZ  BTREERBEER
il o

BEBSRE  Bt— AASBEZEBEE - BEE
BEEERTAER - NN -FRBE 2 @TERENE
BN FELEBEEEZVBER - R—NAlE
MAREER - BEBENFETRAESHER

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive directors (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho, aged 54, is appointed as the Director of distribution of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall sales and marketing strategy
and the distribution of electronics components. Mr. Cheung joined the Group
since 1982 and has more than 30 years of experience in the field of electronic
components distribution in Hong Kong, China and North America. Mr. Cheung
was the pioneer of the Group to start the distribution of electronic components
in major cities in China since early 80’s and has established sales offices in
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Beijing, Shanghai and Chengdu.

Mr. CHONG Wing Kam, James, aged 52, is the Vice President (manufacturing)
of the Group to oversee the manufacturing segment of the Group. Mr. Chong
graduated from DeVry Institute of Technology as Electronic Engineer in RF and
Telecom communication system. Mr. Chong is the Certified Engineering from
Ontario Association of Certified Engineering Technicians and Technologists
(OACETT). Mr. Chong is the Window NT and Novell Netware engineer, solid
foundation in 1SO-9001 auditing, certified Six Sigma Green Belt of Certified
Member of Six Sigma Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Chong has more than 25 years
of operation experience in electronic industry. Prior to joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Chong worked for various conglomerate in charge of the R&D, production,
material planning, Quality Management System, Process engineering, Public
data/voice network installation and implementation, Public transit data/voice
network tender, general management and budgeting.

Mr. FUNG Wai Ching, aged 51,
Mr. Fung was awarded the Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy by City
University of Hong Kong in 1992. He is responsible for the finance function of
the Group. Before joining the Group in 1994, Mr. Fung had 9 year experience in
auditing and commercial accounting.

is the Assistant General Manager of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Group in 1994. Dr. Buttifant is currently an independent non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited, which is publicly listed
company in Hong Kong. He also serves as a non-executive director of Global-
Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. (formerly known as Global-Tech Appliances,
Inc.), a NASDAQ company and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Limited, a NYSE
listed public company. Dr. Buttifant is currently an independent adviser to MCL
Financial Group Ltd. From 2011 to 2014, he was an executive director of Hsin
Chong Construction Group (“HCCG”) and a non-executive director of Synergis
Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Dr. Buttifant rejoined IDT International Limited as a Chief Executive Officer in
July 2010. In October 2009, Dr. Buttifant was a director — corporate finance of
Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) and prior to this appointment, he was the consultant
to the Group since December 2008. Prior to joining MHG, Dr. Buttifant served
as a principal of KLC Kennic Lui & Company, a professional accounting firm,
and managing director of KLC Transactions Limited. Prior to joining KLC, Dr.
Buttifant was the executive director — finance of MHG. In December 2004,
Dr. Buttifant was the managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings
Limited, a controlling shareholder of HCCG (which was acquired by MHG in
November 2007) and Synergis (which was acquired by HCCG in September
2008). Dr. Buttifant was an alternate director to both public companies. Dr.
Buttifant was an operating partner of Baring Private Equity Asia Limited. He was
also the managing director of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”)
from 2001 to 2002 and was the Advisor to the board of directors of Wo Kee
Hong from 2002 to 2004. Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was the managing
director of IDT International Limited for over 8 years and had worked for Polly
Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited for more than 11 years in
the capacity of finance director and managing director. He has over 34 years
of experience in corporate and financial management in HK. Dr. Buttifant is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK); the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; the Chartered Management
Institute (UK); the Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Dr. Buttifant, being a person distinguished in eminence and
by attainments, was admitted to the degree of Honorary Doctorate of Business
Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom,
in February 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Dr. Liu holds a PhD Degree in
Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hotel and Tourism Management
School of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008, a Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from Curtin University of Technology in 2013, a Master
of Arts degree in China Studies from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2011, a Master of Arts Degree in Asian and International Studies
from City University of Hong Kong in 2013, a Master of Science degree in Global
Business from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2002, a Master of Science
Degree in Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2001 and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Open University of Hong Kong in 1999. He is also an Associate Member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. From 10 September 2010, Dr.

independent non-executive director of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited

Liu is an
(formerly known as Kosmopolito Hotels International Limited), which is public

listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr Choi was awarded Bachelor
of Laws Degree (LLB) by University of London in 1988 and Post-graduate
Mr Choi is the

sole proprietor of Messrs. Choi, Leung & Associates. Mr. Choi is a Solicitor of

Certificate in Laws (PCLL) by University of Hong Kong in 1991.

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and a Solicitor of England and

Wales.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and these service contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by

either party for not less than three or six months’ prior written notice.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which cannot be
terminated by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the directors’ service contracts noted above and the connected
transactions noted as below, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required,
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) RADATEREEOIOETZRAFE (a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each
BRILER FTEIR
P BB 1 2 B B
Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares attached to derivatives
ERTEER
Ordinary shares in issue
BARER FEEER HitihE s my
EENE Personal Mt Corporate Wz Other Total Btk
Name of directors interests Notes interests Notes interests interests Percentage
ABEEE
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 29,696,426 1 210,096,536 283 1,428,597 241,221,529 55.17%
BRETBE AL
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky 5,053,567 1 210,096,536 283 26,071,426 241,221,529 55.17%
REZTE
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho 57,033 — - 57,033 0.013%
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BEERBSTHRABERAEADAHEM
EHRBLIECRG HERORER
B2EZRARE®

(a) RADEEREE10ETZRBFR (&

Bt -

1. BEERRLL(BEEZRB)MEERAK
AaERR 8,625,000 f% ©

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Ltd
([China Capitall) & = # & &~ 2 7 I8 17
133,948,541 % ° China CapitalZz & % Z
NTEETHRABECEES  #BTESLZ
M+ EBTRAHRZ LS -

3. Leading Trade Ltd ([ Leading Trade |) & &=

BARRATFRAD 76,147,995 % ° Leading Trade
BAZETEHITRAHALEHES - 88T
BOZATERITRAHMRLZTES -
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each (continued)

Notes:

1. 3,625,000 shares in the Company were jointly held by Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan (the spouse of Mr. Lau).

2. 138,948,541 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by China
Capital Holdings Investment Ltd (“China Capital”). The issued share capital
of China Capital is 60% owned by Mr. Lau, and 40% owned by Ms. Chan.

3. 76,147,995 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by Leading
Trade Ltd (“Leading Trade”). The issued share capital of Leading Trade is
50% owned by Mr. Lau and 50% owned by Ms. Chan.
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BEERERSTHRAERADQTREM
EHMBEIECRAL - HEARORERE
BRBERKREB @

(b) RAEQXREBBEEZRG

Dominion International Limited (8 211548 % 4 [z
RABLZTEREED 2 ATl

EFERERAF

Cosmos Wires and Connectors Manufacturing Limited

Westpac Digital Limited

EEREXFRAF
Vastpoint Industrial Limited

AMEEERAQT
Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

B EtEEEIN  RZE-—AF=A=+—H  AQA
REFIRFBITBRARRBEZBHEALRENARF]
S EEMBEEE(ERR B MEHRIEXVE) 2
Betn - BRI RERE D A RIEES SR
XVEBE 7 8o abEM @ AN R E MRz Em AR
(BHEREE S M ERD 225 G EEIAR R
B2RGEIRR)  RARBERBEESFRAEGRIE
B2 FAIRERARRBFZERMzERIAR - 2
RIBLETRANZ ETRATEEETERRZNRET R
ARMEARRR R EAERIORE -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(b) Shares of associated corporations of the company

Dominion International Limited, which is 50% owned by Mr. Lau, and
50% owned by Ms. Chan:

FEZERERELZRODEE
Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

50,000

455,000

1,500,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors, chief
executives of the Company or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in

the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BIATR LR R AEAE

BEXS

ANEFEP—EHE QT - Daiwa Distribution (Ontario)
Inc.  HBIBEEERRBBLLHAEE 2 AR —
F'EﬁBD’%K%?%JEETQ—IEE&WF* CREBE T -F
NA—BEZZE—tFRA=ZT—H - WHBERZ AR
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A subsidiary of the Group, Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc., had entered into a
rental agreement in respect of office space in Canada with a company jointly
owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky for the period from
1 June 2014 to 31 May 2017. Monthly rental paid for the office premises is
CAD13,696 (approximately HK$93,000).

The above constituted a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the opinion that the above transaction was entered into on
normal commercial terms and on an arm'’s length basis; was fair and reasonable

so far as the shareholders of the Company, taken as a whole, are concerned.

The above connected transaction constituted an exempted connected

transaction under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had entered
into any connected transactions discloseable by the Company under the Listing

Rules during the year.
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FTERRNES

RZBE-—RE=ZA=+—H #ABEEZMA THAL
(FRAREEHAESTHRAERINNARE Z KD - 18
M S ERETHEAREESRAERIIEXVHE2
N3 EMEARARRRE 2 BETORE - REER
BEHEM BN RETABER TEARE T AEMBRK
BRABZERAE LREZEMERIBAEE 5% 5IA
L2

RAR B RGBS

Leading Trade Limited
China Capital Holdings Investment Limited

Wit -

1. Leading Trade Limited 2 50% # 5 /& 2115 18 % £ A
BEARSO%EZBRMBLLTIES - At - BIE
BELEEER - Leading Trade Limited » 254 K
BRZ + 19 1 4R A& % 576,147,995 » 241,221,529 %
241,221,529 RA R AR 2 4w o

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited 2 60%
HERISELEEMERRIAO%ERARBRTEZ L
FER o Bt - RIBEZE S RHE S - China Capital
Holdings Investment Limited + 2154 & BR 22 £ 5 Bl
18 B A 133,948,541 + 241,221,529 [ 241,221,529
ARAN A RIAR A7 2 eSS o

B Dt g B -RF=A=+—H  ARFERXR
FERAMERBRBARFE BITHRA% HIA EABE L
NRES MG G015 336 18Rz T ERRAM 2 #

S o

E\

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
parties (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company), had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which are required to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 and Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group.

Interests in the shares of the Company

HEBRITRG
BERGHAE wEHEI
k=3 Number of % of the total
Note shares held issued shares
76,147,995 17.42%
2 133,948,541 30.64%
Notes:
1. Leading Trade Limited is 50% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and 50% owned by
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, Leading Trade Limited, Mr. Lau and
Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in 76,147,995, 241,221,529 and
241,221,529 shares of the Company.
2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited is 60% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and

40% owned by Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited, Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in
133,948,541, 241,221,529 and 241,221,529 shares of the Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of Substantial Shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2015.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float

throughout the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 23.

INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of internal audit, internal controls
and risk evaluation. The Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan and Dr. LIU
Ngai Wing. Two meetings were held during the current financial year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan
President

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAIWA ASSOCIATE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 40 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015
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Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses

Gains/(losses) on disposals of land use rights,
investment properties and property,
plant and equipment

Fair value losses on investment properties

Impairment loss on goodwill

Other (losses)/gains, net

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance income

Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit
attributable to equity holders of the
Company during the year

Basic and diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

statements.

Note 38.

Mzt
Note

10
10

11

34

15

For the year ended 31 March 2015

=23 —z—N
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&%)
(Restated)
531,126 618,300
(466,600) (530,537)
64,526 87,763
2,298 3,042
(13,448) (12,901)
(85,371) (68,001)
27,139 (41)
(26) (1,107)
(22,559) -
(1,799) 71
(29,240) 8,826
1,321 942
(2,105) (2,349
(30,024) 7,419
(9,700) (2,425)
(39,724) 4,994
- 3,181
(39,724) 8,175
(39,724) 4,994
- 3,181
(39,724) 8,175

HK(9.09) cents
N/A

HK1.20 cents
HKO.76 cents

The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company are set out in
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Comprehensive (loss)/income:

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Fair value gain on available-for-sale financial
assets

Revaluation gain on land and buildings, net of tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2015

—ZE—F1 —ZE—q
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
(39,724) 8,175
(9,041) (5,378)
143 331
17,163 —
8,265 (5,047)
(31,459) 3,128
(31,459) (563)
— 3,181
(31,459) 3,128

The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

41

BN EERERARAA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Consolidated Balance Sheet

&E
FRBEE
kS
eI 2 INE
REME
3 A A
AHHESRERE
BEMBREE
Hip R HEE

RBEE
&
FEU & S ARIA M EIE %
BNFR - ek
Hofth & W 5RO
JRE W A5 5K
REeMREEFEY

REE

R
DEEEFEARGERER
f#fE

B

Bt (B

Gk

FEEEHI MRS

A

aNEEERAERAA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

42

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Land use rights
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred income tax assets
Other long-term assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and notes receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Bt
Note

16
17
18
19
22
30
20

23
24

25

26

31

32

As at 31 March 2015

=A=+—H MA—H
As at 31 March As at 1 April
—Z£—4h —ZF—q —F—=
2015 2014 2013
FET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(&5) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)

- 25,901 28,201
39,546 72,916 76,500
3,540 54,459 55,566
2,092 5,082 5,208
14,088 15,467 15,136
115 241 —
3,564 972 1,073
62,945 175,038 181,684
116,250 115,478 98,031
92,286 96,424 95,198
11,396 11,961 19,287
1,049 — —
71,669 558583 60,160
292,650 279,396 272,676
355,595 454,434 454,360
43,724 43,724 39,424
- 233,196 225,514
142,577 (87,298) (40,426)
186,301 239,622 224,512
215 215 215
186,516 239,837 224,727




EHEEAEBR Consolidated Balance Sheet
H=

+—A As at 31 March 2015

=A=+—H mA—H
As at 31 March As at 1 April
—E—Fh —Z—q —F—=
2015 2014 2013
it FET FET FETL
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%) (&Z71)
(Restated) (Restated)
=N LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BREFEHEaE Deferred income tax liabilities 30 12,311 4,159 4,194
B& Borrowings - — 301
12,311 4,159 4,515
REEE Current liabilities
B Borrowings 27 74,805 105,528 113,947
JE & 3K AR TR Trade payables 28 57,930 84,436 65,425
JE 1t B R e HL b FE A5 SR TR Accruals and other payables 29 24,033 18,043 44,256
FES TR Tax payable - 2,431 1,490
156,768 210,438 225,118
HEE Total liabilities 169,079 214,597 229,633
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 355,595 454,434 454,360
hREEEFE Net current assets 135,882 68,958 47,558
EERAERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 198,827 243,996 229,242
2|82 R 19 2% LAU Tak Wan CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
¥ -F Ell#at President Vice-President
RA8EE 142 B2 Wik 5A 5 HRE 2 B35 o The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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ASSETS

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Total equity and liabilities

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Total assets less current liabilities

LAU Tak Wan
President

statements.

As at 31 March 2015

—E—1 —ZE—n

2015 2014

HtaE FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
7 44,715 44,715
37, 39(b) 118,884 140,542
163,599 185,257

25 112 141
26 469 182
581 323

164,180 185,580

31 43,724 43,724
32(b) - 233,196
32(b) 119,599 (91,641)
163,323 185,279

29 857 301
857 301

164,180 185,580

(276) 22

163,323 185,279

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
Vice-President

The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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EHFEREHE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HIf—F—AaF=A=1T—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
DNEEREE AL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FE I
i
(&S I 173 55 B Non- RERAEE
Share Share e #%  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(Kfat31) (Kf:#32)
(Note 31) (Note 32)
R-ZE-NFEMNBE—AR At 1 April 2014,
WA 23/ as previously reported 43,724 233,196 (48,952) 227,968 215 228,183
SEHRZE Changes in accounting policies
(Hi#2.1(0)) (Note 2.1(d)) - - 11,654 11,654 - 11,654
R-ZZ—MEMA—H At 1 April 2014, as restated
g7 43,724 233,196 (37,298) 239,622 215 239,837
REEE: Comprehensive loss:
FEEBE Loss for the year - - (39,724) (39,724) - (39,724)
Hitts&m& Wz (B#E) :  Other comprehensive
income/(loss):
INEME Z 5 Currency translation differences - - (9,041) (9,041) - (9,041)
THREFEBRKE Revaluation gain on land and
PR buildings, net of tax - - 17,163 17,163 - 17,163
AEHESRHEE Fair value gain on available-for-
DB sale financial assets - - 143 143 - 143
HiRE WS EE Total other comprehensive
income - - 8,265 8,265 - 8,265
RERER Total comprehensive loss - - (31,459) (31,459) - (31,459)
HEZEEENRS : Transaction with owners:
BB B 1234 B Reduction of share premium
(Hf332) (Note 32) —  (233,196) 233,196 - - -
W& 2. (K75 38) Dividend (Note 38) - - (21,862) (21,862) - (21,862)
—  (283,196) 211,334 (21,862) - (21,862)
R=Z-51F At 31 March 2015
=A=t+-—H 43,724 - 142,577 186,301 215 186,516
R48EZ 142 B 2 Mz RE S sk 2 B MH - The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B —F—AF=HA=+—HIFFE

R-Z-=%mA—-A"
WA 2
SR BEE
(Hiat2.1(a)

R=B-—=FWA—1 "
EL]

REtas
F R F

HibHE (BR)/ K3
i
TpHESREE

AT

HipGAERAE

FEHERS

HEEXEEENRS
BTG
(K1a£31)

R-ZE—NF
=A=+-—H

At 1 April 2013,
as previously reported
Changes in accounting policies
(Note 2.1(d))

At 1 April 2013, as restated

Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
(loss)/income:
Currency translation differences
Fair value gain on available-for-
sale financial assets

Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners:
Issuance of new shares
(Note 31)

At 31 March 2014

EMEEZERER QA 46

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

NEIEREA AEN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 March 2015

FERR M
i
AR AR B 17 B Non- [ £t
Share Share =4 4% controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
FHET FET FHET FHET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(K1:#31) (Hia#32)
(Note 31) (Note 32)
39,424 225,514 (62,247) 212,691 215 212,906
= = 11,821 11,821 = 11,821
39,424 225,514 (40,426) 224,512 215 224,727
— - 8,175 8,175 - 8,175
— — (6,378) (5,378) — (5,378)
= = 331 331 = 331
— — (5,047) (5,047) — (5,047)
- — 3,128 3,128 — 3,128
4,300 7,682 = 11,982 = 11,982
43,724 233,196 (37,298) 239,622 215 239,837

The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.



EHEBEERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HIf—F—AaF=A=1T—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2015
i} —=—q
2015 2014
Bt et FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETE2HEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
wEEE (A EE2EE Cash (used in)/generated from operations 33(a) (41,980) 5,997
SRR Interest paid (2,105) (2,349)
U B ) 8, Interest received 1,321 942
BT ETS R K Income tax paid (4,672) (1,760)
KETBN(FTR) /EXZFES Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities (47,436) 2,830
REFBHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
EEM M REHE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (2,859) (4,224)
BB i fF A Purchase of land use right (2,112) _
HETHERE  REMER Proceeds from disposal of land use rights,
M - B2 REREERIE investment properties and property,
plant and equipment 33(b) 126,693 114
EINRE Addition to investment properties (36) —
HEHBARBBRE S Settlement of retention arrangement in
Rz respect of disposed subsidiaries - (5,694)
BEFHELE/(FTA)Z2FES Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities 121,686 (9,804)
RMETBHZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT AD REEE# IR FT1S Net proceeds from issue and placing of
IR FEE shares - 11,982
SATRRERAR B Dividend paid to shareholders (21,862) =
FrILIRITE R New bank borrowings 170,288 254,037
EEBIRITTER Repayment of bank borrowings (203,701) (265,987)
MERERS T H 2 A& 2 H Payment of capital element of finance lease
obligations = (321)
BEEBFAZ RS Net cash used in financing activities (55,275) (289)
He BEZEEYRBTEZZ Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash
REERE M OR2) equivalents and bank overdrafts 18,975 (7,263)
RUA—BZzHE ReEEYME Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
SRITEX at 1 April 52,002 60,160
INEERERE R  ReEZBY Effect of foreign exchange rate change on
FEREE cash and cash equivalents, net (1,998) (895)
R=ZA=+—H8zH&  HeE Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
BEYRIRITESZ at 31 March 68,979 52,002
WER 48 BEE 142 A ARG HUMBHRE 2 BB M The notes on pages 48 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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BNEEERERAR(TARRDR—AE
FZRA=ZARB-—NAN—FEREARER
BREDAMKZIAERERERAF - A
#t = B i 4t & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° XA &R
—NANEFENA+EBEEBHERSMER
AR ([EBERRAT]) £ o

ARBIREMBAR(GEAISE ] EE2ESE
RHE T Lastt  EEEFEM  REHEEA

THES -

B BINHE AR RIABEITTE R o AT
BEN_Z—AFAA=THEEESHET
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EEZSHEREE
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MABEFEHERER -
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2015

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda on 3 February 1994 as an exempted
company under Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 14 April 1994.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the electronic components distribution, electronic products
manufacturing, and the personal computer products distribution.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30 June 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, investment
properties and land and buildings classified as property, plant
and equipment, which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative
period.
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TE—RF-F=F+H

2. EESTHREE»

2.1

mHIEE(E)

RENABEUBRELEN ZREFR
ERETRESER - ENFTEERE
BEERAAEESHREBERTERE
HIE - % K= R HE S m R R
5 - IFREAHVBHRRBEAR
RMAHRHE - T4 P HE -

(a) HFHRBURZEBEERZET
=47

71 65 = E A B R R R A
RBBEAUNZETBAR_-F
—MEMNA—BRBHZED
BETFERRBIER

o BEGIEAENS  BERE
(BATA)
o BRAUBHREENEI0  REER
% AAUEREER
F12%  BbGE
A% 275 (2011 5F)
(fE3T)
o DAUBREREZEE HE
- FEEAY
RNZERBUARE AN
1EET MoK ¥ AN & B 345 B B 75
RABKEATE -

2.

31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Effect of adopting interpretation and amendments
to existing standards

The following interpretation and amendments to existing
standards are relevant to the Group’s operations and
mandatory for its accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2014:

o HKAS 36 (Amendment) ‘Impairment of assets”
o HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 “Investment entities”
and HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendment)
o HKFRIC 21 “Levies”

The adoption of these interpretation and amendments
to standards did not have any significant impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.
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31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2. BEESHHBE#BZE» 2.

2.1 iRHIEEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) E 78 1 18 ] 7k 4 34 iy < 55 B 3 (b) Standards and amendments to existing standards
BEREBIRAIFTER - HEE that are not yet effective and have not been early
BRI Z 85T adopted by the Group

TFEBEMmaER - RA LR
ZETER-_T—HRAFEMA—
B B 6 3k 2 18 B & 5 4F 2 58
AT - EAREE BT RA

The following published standards and amendments
to existing standards are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2015 and
have not been early adopted by the Group:

o ERSENEI0E BTG RS J
(011%)(BTx)  #x

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendment)

“Defined benefit plans: employee
contributions”";

o BEHBHEER BRHHREE o HKFRSs (Amendment) “Annual improvements to HKFRS 2010-2012
(%) 2010220126 Cycle™;
BRIz
o BEHBHEER BRHHREE o HKFRSs (Amendment) “Annual improvements to HKFRS 2011-2013
(%) 011220135 Cycle™;
BRIz
o BEHBHEER BRHHREE o HKFRSs (Amendment) “Annual improvements to HKFRS 2012-2014
(%) 2012220145 Cycle™,
FRg Kz
o ARUBALENEI0 REZEEEENT o HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Sale or contribution of assets between
HRER e LA E-UNIPA | (Amendment) an investor and its associate or joint
VL HEY MAELESR venture’
F
o FEMBBLENE UBRAKEKVE o HKFRS 11 (Amendment) “Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
bHCHEY VALl joint operations’:
o BACHENZE6RR TRAREREHS o HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 “Clarification of acceptable methods of
EAeERESS  EAR? (Amendment) depreciation and amortisation’?;

o AREMENEI6RR RE: £EMEN o HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 “Agriculture: bearer plants’;
BbestERE 4 (Amendment)
R(EITR)
o BEGHENENY EBEMERRMES o HKAS 27 (Amendment) “Equity method in separate financial
(B3TE) £ statements'?;
o BREBAEENE  EEREEPU R o HKFRS 14 “Regulatory deferral accounts™; and
145
o EROIBASENE  EERPROKAY o HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers’,
16%
! RZZE—ME+A—HBRHA 0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
M EEHEEAERE 2014
B e
2 RZE-—RE—HA—HBHA 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
M FEMESASEE A January 2016
B e

H(BHE)

R_F—tF—A—HHA

HZFE
e

HREAEEE

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017

& I8 [ 15 7E AT (i PR AR s 2

Management is in the process of making an assessment

B RER BT 222 a of the impact of these new standards and amendments
Bl M REEEZEFHER & to existing standards and is not yet in a position to state

JZ1’{§T%§‘§¥T$E I%Zﬁ whether they will have a significant impact on the Group’s
KRB SARRERERN R results and financial position.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

(d)

In addition, the disclosure requirements of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) for an overseas
incorporated company listed in Hong Kong will become
effective for the Company’s financial year ending 31
March 2016 under the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of
expected impact of the changes. So far it has concluded
that the impact is unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements will be affected.

Changes in accounting policies

Measurement basis of investment properties

In previous years, the Group’s investment properties
were measured using the cost model in the consolidated
financial statements. With effect from 1 April 2014,
the Group revised its accounting policy in respect of
investment properties from the use of cost model to
the fair value model under HKAS 40. In addition, land
use rights in relation to investment properties previously
classified as prepayments are reclassified as part of
the investment properties as if they are finance leases.
All investment properties are then carried at fair value
based on valuations by external independent valuers. All
subsequent changes in fair value of investment properties
are recognised in profit or loss. These changes were
made to enhance the relevancy of financial data to the
users of the consolidated financial statements.

This change in accounting policy has been accounted
for retrospectively and the comparative figures for prior
periods have been restated.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Measurement basis of land and buildings classified as
property, plant and equipment

In previous years, the Group’s land and buildings were
measured using the cost model in the consolidated
financial statements. With effect from 1 April 2014, the
Group revised its accounting policy in respect of land and
buildings from the use of cost model to the revaluation
model under HKAS 16, under which these assets are
carried at fair value based on valuations by external
independent valuers. Any land use rights associated with
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment
continued to be accounted for as prepayments.
Accordingly, any subsequent increase in the fair values
of land and buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment is recognised in other comprehensive income,
whereas any such decrease is recognised in profit or
loss to the extent such decrease exceeds the credit
previously recognised in equity. These changes to reflect
the fair value of the land and buildings were made to
enhance the relevancy of financial data to the users of the
consolidated financial statements.

This change in accounting policy has been accounted for
prospectively as a revaluation at the date of change.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

= 25
e

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Effect of adoption

The effect of adoption of these changes in accounting
policies is set out below:

Consolidated balance sheet

Increase in investment properties

(Note 18)

Increase in deferred income tax

liabilities (Note 30)

Increase in property, plant and

equipment (Note 17)

Increase in retained profits/decrease in

accumulated losses

Increase in property revaluation

reserve

Decrease in land use rights (Note 19)

=H=+—H MmA—H

As at 31 March As at 1 April
—E—-1 —Z=—N —F—=
2015 2014 2013
FET TFET T
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
3,090 19,868 20,202
3,959 3,886 3,941
20,536 — —
1,760 11,654 11,821
16,621 — —
(744) (4,328) (4,440)
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2. EEETBESE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continueq)
2.1 R EEZ) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) B EEE(E) (d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
RN E () Effect of adoption (continued)

BE=R=1+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 March

—Z-—-h —ZE—N
2015 2014
FET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EOEFIER Consolidated income statement
TS R 2 Decrease in income tax expense 3,298 55
KEME RN TEBEIEM Increase in fair value loss on
investment properties (26) (1,107)
P& KR Decrease in depreciation and
amortisation - 885
HERF REMER Decrease in gains on disposals of
THIE R 2 buildings, investment properties
Wam and land use rights (13,708) =
BRIRERZFE D (B Decrease in basic earnings per share
(HK cents) (0.26) (0.04)
RZZE—=FMNA—HWE Balances as at 1 April 2013 impacted by the changes in
Liie JrBZ%“EJﬁPﬁi‘?? accounting policies described above are further disclosed
TEEBOE Ot B R M sk in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial
E—PHERE mMEMTEZE statements, whereas no additional disclosures are made
SRR ERR N FE © in respect of other balances as they are unaffected.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

(a)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

(i) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

(c)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment, if any. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’'s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(c)

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the impairment in the

income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the income statement.
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31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HKS$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the income statement within “finance income” or
“finance costs”. All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the income statement within “other (losses)/
gains, net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(ifi) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising land and buildings,
is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes
properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment properties. Land held under operating leases
are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases,
the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they
were finance leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value
is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the income statement as part of a valuation gain or
loss in ‘fair value losses on investment properties’.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost mainly
represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plant and buildings are situated for a prescribed
period from the date the respective rights were granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the period of leases.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Effective 1 April 2014,
production or supply of good or services, or for administrative

land and buildings held for use in the

purposes are stated at their revalued amount, being the fair value
on the basis of their existing use at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined

using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the property revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits/(accumulated
losses).

All other property, plant and equipment and land and
building prior to 1 April 2014 are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation of land classified as finance lease and
depreciation of other assets are calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values, where
applicable, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land classified as finance lease Over the lease terms

Buildings 50 years

Plant and machinery Straight line 6 to 7 years

Leasehold improvements, Straight line 5 to 10 years
furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles Straight line 5 years

Moulds and tooling Straight line 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings, the
costs of plant and machinery, installation, testing and other direct
costs. No depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into use,
the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘gains/(losses) on disposals of land use rights, investment
properties and property, plant and equipment’ in the income
statement.
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31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Club debenture

Club debenture represents golf club membership and is
stated at cost less impairment, if any.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example, goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification (continued)
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and notes receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in
the balance sheet (Notes 2.14 and 2.15).

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months at the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10

2.11

Financial assets (continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustment
recognised in equity is included in the income statement
as “other (losses)/gains, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not

be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the

normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is

reversed through the income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average method.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw

materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production

overheads (based on normal operating capacity).

It excludes

borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling

price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.
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31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank
overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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31 March 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except for deferred tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is legally enforceable rights to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balance on a net basis.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all relevant
employees. These plans are generally funded through
payments to schemes established by government or
trustee-administered funds. A defined contribution plan is
a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefit
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

All contributions to pension plans are fully and
immediately vested and the Group had no unvested
benefits available to reduce its future contributions.

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense within “finance costs” in the income statement.

Leases (as the lessee)

(a) Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that substantially
transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in current and non-current liabilities, where appropriate.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

75 aEMEEERER A A

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B G IS B R M 5T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—FE-AnF=HA=1+—H 31 March 2015
2. EESTBRXRHBE# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2,23 MHEMUEHRABEAN)E) 2.23 Leases (as the lessee) (continued)
(b) AERA (b) Operating leases
NEEESBEZ BRI D REER Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
FEHRDE LB ARFRE A rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
2 HIELERL - REL classified as operating leases. Payments made under
EROED 2 RGO EHEA operating leases (net of any incentives received from
A& T2 EAER)EH BRI the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
BHEEEMBERPHR - straight-line basis over the lease periods.
224 WARER 2.24 Revenue recognition
WAZRHE ' MR IR E Wk EUR(E Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
Z AN THEFERKREMHERENKD 2 received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
FRIE o W AEHIRRIE I - R EFIEE goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
TiE5|8R o AEBHREERA T2 W added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
RIRA S5 - B Ao R RAER = of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
ARRIARAEEBATEBEBHEER future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
AR R M m R A o REERE criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
BAEEBELGBES  UKEREFLSE described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on
B RSG\RIRESBLHEZHTEAE - historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,

the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) HEERT (a) Sales of goods
EEEREMBARRERR Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
NER BFEXERKRES has delivered products to the customer, the customer
32 (R 3 46 B8 FE UL 3RIE e Uk [m) has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
% HEEMZIBENERA obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
R o the products and collectivity of the related receivables is

reasonably assured.

(b) FIE KA (b) Interest income
B M A AR BN =K E A1 Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
R e method.

(c) HALWKA (c) Rental income
EHEBENESWAKREIRUE Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
RETER o straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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31 March 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented in the income statement, which comprises the post-
tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax
gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, and cash
flow and fair value interest-rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures is governed by the Group’s policies approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group would
occasionally enter into certain forward foreign exchange contracts
to manage its exchange risks. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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3.

31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada with most of the
transactions settled in United States dollars
(“US$”), HK$, Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Canadian dollars (“CAD”). Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currencies, primarily
with respect to US$, CAD and RMB. Since
the HK$ is pegged to the US$, management
are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk
exposure arising from US$ with respect to HK$ is
insignificant.

Management has a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their functional currencies. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arising from
sales and purchases made by the relevant
group companies in currencies other than their
own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and would consider the
use of foreign exchange contracts to manage its
foreign exchange risks, where appropriate. As
at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any
outstanding foreign exchange contracts.

As at 31 March 2015, certain of the Group’s
receivables, cash and bank balances and trade
payables were denominated in foreign currencies,
details of which have been disclosed in the
respective notes to these consolidated financial
statements.
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31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

U

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 March 2015, if the HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB, with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss (2014:
post-tax profit) for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,370,000 lower/higher (2014:
HK$1,012,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
RMB-denominated financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 March 2015, if the CAD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKS$, with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss (2014:
post-tax profit) for the year would have been
approximately HK$327,000 higher/lower (2014:
HK$898,000 lower/higher), main as result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
CAD-denominated financial assets and liabilities.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk as
the securities investments held by the Group are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets
in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2015.
Balance of securities investments are relatively
insignificant to the Group and the directors are of
the view that there is no significant resulting price
risk. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk.
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3.

31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for the cash at
banks, details of which are disclosed in Note
26. The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings,
details of which are disclosed in Note 27.
Borrowings carried at floating rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2015, if the interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax loss (2014: post-tax profit) for the year would
have been HK$127,000 higher/lower (2014:
HK$162,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings. Interest rate risk in relation to the
Group’s key management insurance contract is
set out in Note 22.
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31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and notes
receivables, deposits and other receivables included in
the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The majority of the Group’s cash at banks are deposited
in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Normally the Group does
not require collaterals from trade debtors. The Group also
occasionally enters into credit insurance arrangement to
minimise its exposures to credit risks.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the trade and other debtors, the relevant
credit insurance coverage and whether there are any
disputes with the relevant debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in these financial statements.
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31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, settlement of borrowings, payment for
trade and other payables and payment for operating
expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources
and bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Taking into account the repayment on demand clauses on
bank borrowings, all of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at 31 March 2015 were due for settlement contractually
within 12 months, with their contractual undiscounted
cash flows approximated their respective carrying
amounts.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity
date of term loans with a repayment on demand clause
is based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreement, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Group

At 31 March 2015
Borrowings

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

At 31 March 2014
Borrowings

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

FR-_T—NF=
 EEfTAN SR

XN+ —EARE

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

—-FR -FERE —EZRE RENE
Within Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
TET AT TET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
65,688 755 11,496 -
57,930 - - -
22,491 = = =
89,381 6,064 9,816 1,695
84,436 - - -
15,688 - - -

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, all of the Group’s
financial liabilities are due for settlement contractually

within 12 months.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, all the resulting fair value
estimates on the available-for-sale financial assets, land and
buildings and investment properties are made according to the
fair value measurement hierarchy under HKFRS 7.

The different levels of fair value measurements are defined as
follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The following table shows fair value measurement hierarchy to
which the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets, land and
buildings and investment properties are measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2015 and 2014:

—ZF—-1 —ZE—m
2015 2014
FETT FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
Level 1
Equity listed securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets 451 308
Level 3
Key management insurance contract classified
as available-for-sale financial assets 13,637 15,159
Land and buildings 26,630 =
Investment properties 3,540 54,459
43,807 69,618

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.
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31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.2

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to estimate the fair
value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Further details of available-for-sale financial assets classified
within level 3 of fair value hierarchy are set out in Note 22.

The Group’s land and buildings and investment properties
are measured at fair value. Refer to Note 17 for disclosure of
land and buildings and Notes 18 for disclosure of investment
properties.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including trade payables, accruals and other payables,
and borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.
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31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Total borrowings (Note 27)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26)

B FR Net debt
ke Total equity
FEN= N Total capital
BEARBERE Gearing ratio

aNEEERAERAA
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Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
“equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
March 2015 and 2014:

—ZE—-1 —ZF—n
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(E31)

(Restated)

74,805 105,528
(71,669) (565,533)
3,136 49,995
186,516 239,837
189,652 289,832
2% 17%
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31 March 2015

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.3

Capital risk management (continued)

The optimal capital structure is regularly assessed by the Group
with reference to the availability of committed facilities, the
financing costs involved and availability of bank balances.

As at 31 March 2015, total banking facilities made available
to the Group amounted to approximately HK$163,238,000
(2014:HK$155,708,000), of which approximately HK$74,805,000
(2014: HK$105,528,000) were utilised by the Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations required the use of estimates (Note 16).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of other non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Determining whether impairment has occurred
typically requires various estimates and assumptions, including
determining which cash flows are directly related to the
potentially impaired asset, the useful life over which cash
flows will occur, their amount, and the asset’s residual value,
if any. In turn, measurement of an impairment loss requires a
determination of recoverable amount, which is based on the best
information available. The Group derives the required cash flow
estimates from historical experience and internal business plans.
To determine recoverable amount, the Group uses cash flow
estimates discounted at an appropriate discount rate, quoted
market prices when available and independent appraisals, as
appropriate. Details of impairment assessment performed in
relation to property, plant and equipment are set out in Note 17.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.



& G B %5 ¥R N R

—F—AaF=HA=+—H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 March 2015

WAR D HBER 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
£5
Group
—Z—-F —Z=—N
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREER Continuing operations
- Turnover
HEEM Sales of goods 531,126 618,300
EBER Segment information
AEEFTERELHEETF LM EEETE The Group is principally engaged in the electronic components
mm SE 7S R B N B E A S SR TS distribution, electronic products manufacturing, and personal computer

BERRARNTES(REAIERE
/?%%/\J)  JME R RER R TE o E%ELB&ﬁ
NEBBBEBAR R R N H KB A 7 H) A #B R S A
AHARARRIEU D EEENER - EEE
TIMRIEZ TS HAR = D B EHHIE -

IBEEAEARLENERERAREERL
BOERES  NIETTBHEY  [BTE
P8 IR EABKESEH] -

AEBEZZEED A RRMUERFEN - B
BEMNEEAEEE 'ﬁ%BZFﬁE’\JW%BQ%

BREFEEGR  BEVE=7—1% &
BERRAREZ iﬁ"*ﬂZﬁf%ﬂﬁUmﬂ%%ﬁ
EREDHNRKRIR - I"RUETFEBLERRADN
HibERTIABRE HABHRER —BHOAAGE -

EROHMNEERETRER —BEENRERMR
BREE  AIHLESREEMATNEE(E
ZERBOBBNDERRBRELNEES K
RITAEER) - EMD BN ABERETBREANHA R
BREFSHEE  AFNEEREHMNEAE -
ZEEENABREERBERATERKRID -

products distribution.

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive
directors (collectively referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of the Company and
its subsidiaries in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The CODM considers the business from the perspective of the nature
of operations and the type of products, including the “Electronic
Components Distribution”, “Electronic Products Manufacturing” and
“Personal Computer Products Distribution”.

Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by the respective business unit leaders. Inter-
segment transactions are entered into under the normal commercial
terms and conditions that would normally be available to unrelated third
parties. CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit before income tax. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax assets,
available-for-sale financial assets and corporate assets (mainly including
certain corporate properties and equipment and corporate cash and
bank balances), all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of
reportable segments exclude current and deferred income tax liabilities,
corporate borrowings and other corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.
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FaF=A=T-F

5. WARZEHER 5.
PEER(E)
g% Turnover
HEEM Sales of goods
2RIV EE Results of reportable segments
) % XEENFERE A reconciliation of results of reportable
MASEENT : segments to loss for the year is as
follows:
EEIPRA Results of reportable segments
ADERMA W (8) Unallocated income (Note (a))
RARRAZ (M b) Unallocated expenses (Note (b))
E-T Operating loss
BERA - 78 Finance costs — net
BB AR E Loss before income tax
MERRAZ Income tax expense
rEERE Loss for the year
At AHBER Other segment information:
EARMESH X Capital expenditure
nE - BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
bR  REME Gains on disposals of land use rights,
% %Eﬁ&uﬂ% investment properties and property,
plant and equipment
iiﬁﬁﬂ?&é%iﬁ Amortisation of land use rights
Bl $RERERE Provision for impairment of trade
o ‘ receivables
AERERRME16) Impairment losses of goodwill (Note 16)
% BERREHESR Impairment losses of property,
(i 17) plant and equipment (Note 17)
FERERE Provision for impairment of inventories
st -

(@) HARDEBRABRELEREYE - LiE
FREREF (DB - BRI

25 o

m

(b) APERXTIZEEREXREMELNT
B-TEERREXERE  AftBRER
ISR R HoAh B R X
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE-Z-REZA=1-HLEE
Year ended 31 March 2015

BAEH
o ‘ ERi
B nEHLHE ETERBE Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products AAE g
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Unallocated Total
FAET FHET FAET FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
163,741 132,525 234,860 - 531,126
(8,076) 3,939 (18,733) - (22,870)
(22,870)
27,139
(33,509)
(29,240)
(784)
(30,024)
(9,700)
(39,724)
237 842 153 3,775 5,007
162 4,643 247 1,573 6,625
- - - 27,139 27,139
- - - 9% 9
1,206 = 115 - 1,321
- - 22,559 - 22,559
438 - 288 - 726
2,038 843 - - 2,881
Notes

Unallocated income during the year represents gain from disposal of
investment properties, land use rights, and buildings classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Unallocated expenses mainly include salaries, depreciation, legal and
professional fees, other taxes in relation to disposal of properties and other
operating expenses incurred at corporate level.
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—F—AaF=HA=+—H 31 March 2015
5. WARZEER =) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
DEER(E) Segment information (continued)
“E-RE=ZRA=1+-H
As at 31 March 2015
AAEK
ERSH
EFTHHLH ETERRE Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products faEg
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Total
FEx FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
PHEE Segment assets
PHEE Segment assets 94,270 96,253 105,691 296,214
EEMENEE Deferred income tax assets 115
MELESREAE Available-for-sale financial assets 14,088
KA REEWH(2) Other unallocated assets (Note (a)) 45,178
AHEEERRNEELE Total assets per consolidated balance sheet 355,595
PHEE Segment liabilities
PHEE Segment liabilities 55,589 43,957 39,871 139,417
EREMEHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 12,311
ERPRBEWE D) Other unallocated liabilties (Note (b)) 17,351
AHEEEBRNEELE Total liabilities per consolidated balance sheet 169,079
Bt - Notes:
(@) RZF—RF=A=+—H HtbRHEE (a) As at 31 March 2015, other unallocated assets mainly included land and
EXZ0EREKERIAZHEBEN - RIE buildings in respect of all factory and office premises, and cash and cash
F REEAZReARECEEY - HEZ equivalents for corporate usage. Depreciation charge in respect of factory
BETEE BFEEDIEEA ° premises utilised is included in the related segment results.
(b) R-ZE—HFE=A=+—08 ' ' HtXxoE&k & (b) As at 31 March 2015, other unallocated liabilities mainly included corporate
BEXrEZaERInEs - borrowings.
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5. WARDHER @ 5.

DEER(F

e
HEEm
2RI W RA

ERD B KERAFERE
WESHEMT :

2RI B RE
ADEMA
AARFEX (M ()

T
RAA - 58

BBLAIRE
MERFAX

AEERR

A HER
BARXI
% RERRENE

BELHERE RENE
Rk BERRHE
B

TR

R XREAERE

FEHERR

Wiz

Turnover
Sales of goods

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year is as
follows:

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses (Note (a))

Operating profit
Finance costs — net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Losses on disposals of land use rights,
investment properties and property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of land use rights

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Provision for impairment of inventories

ANERXEIZBRERCEEAEENTE  HER
Hih & ER ©
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BZ-T-WME=A=T-RLFE(FES)
Year ended 31 March 2014 (Restated)

EAEH

\ ERm

B AT ETEQYE Personal

Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products KRR k)
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Unallocated Total
TET AT FET T TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
176,993 159,062 282,245 — 618,300
2,406 7,308 6,909 - 16,623
16,623
14,270
(22,067)
8,826
(1,407)
7,419
(2,425)
4,994
377 1,811 267 1,769 4,224
99 4,289 17 3,008 7,567
24 - - 17 4
= = = 126 126
259 = 68 = 327
— — 1,392 — 1,392

Note (a):

Unallocated expenses mainly include salaries, depreciation, and other operating

expenses incurred at corporate level.
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31 March 2015

5. WARZEER =) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
PEER(E Segment information (continued)
“E-ME=A=1+-A(E})
As at 31 March 2014 (Restated)
EAEE
EmiSH
BETERRE EfEMEE Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products Bg
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHEE Segment assets
GRS Goodwill - - 25,901 25,901
At EE Other segment assets 104,327 102,723 74,139 281,189
104,327 102,723 100,040 307,090
EEMENEE Deferred income tax assets 24
NEHESRERE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,467
R REEWH () Other unallocated assets (Note (a)) 131,636
EHEESRRNEELE Total assets per consolidated balance sheet 454,434
AHEE Segment liabilities
ABEE Segment liabltes 73,078 64,059 39,108 177,145
B Tax payable 2,431
EEREHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 4,159
ERDBRERHE L) Other unallocated liabilities (Note (b)) 30,862
AHEESRRNAREE Total liabilities per consolidated balance sheet 214,507
HiaF - Notes:

RZZE—WF=A=+—8 HittRKHEE
EXZBEERKEMBAZABO LI RE
T RPEAZRERESEEY - HEZ
BEFEEREEDBEER

R-ZE—WF=R=+—H EMRHEE
BEIEREEETNEER - AEERIEEKH
B TZEFEAMEENERRENEER

5
A °

As at 31 March 2014, other unallocated assets mainly included land
and buildings in respect of all factory and office premises, and cash and
cash equivalents for corporate usage related to continuing operations.
Depreciation charge in respect of factory premises is included in the
related segment results.

As at 31 March 2014, other unallocated liabilities mainly included corporate
borrowings. Liabilities related to discontinued operations mainly included
outstanding borrowings and trade payables.
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DEER(F

AEEMRER - INBEP K m (BT MER
B)E2OMEERIATHIE

31 March 2015

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external

customers attributable to Hong Kong and other locations (on the basis of
customers’ locations) is analysed as follows:

IR
Revenue from external customers
—ZE—-h —ZT—/
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 77,190 87,970
Fh B K B Mainland China 143,642 131,472
EEM North America 274,632 285,554
B Europe 29,832 101,701
H b MBI Other Asian countries 5,830 11,603
531,126 618,300

g A #768,331,000/8 o(= & — I F:
63,474,000 70)RE —RINEEF °

RZZB—AE=A=+—8 LREBZIER
HEELE KAEE AHEESMEE -
HtRHEEREEMSREE(LEE TR
A& E ) 4N 525,339,000 T (= 8 — U 4 :
8,079,000 L) - MEMME(EERHE K
MER)BIEREEEL A 19,839,000/8 (=
T —[O4 : 124,378,000/87T) °
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Revenue of approximately HK$68,331,000 (2014: HK$63,474,000) are
derived from a single external customer.

At 31 March 2015, the total non-current assets other than goodwill,
available-for-sale financial assets, other long-term assets and deferred
income tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets) located in
Hong Kong are approximately HK$25,339,000 (2014: HK$8,079,000),
and the total non-current assets located in other locations (mainly in
Mainland China and Canada) amounted to approximately HK$19,839,000
(2014: HK$124,378,000).
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6. HflA

2 WA
Hit

7. Hi(EE) WE —

ER(B1R),/ Btk
A HE S /A ERERE

Hit

31 March 2015

6. OTHER INCOME

—ZE—h —ZF—N

2015 2014

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Rental income 2,070 2,005

Others 228 1,037

2,298 3,042

FE 7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

=2-3 —Z=—m

2015 2014

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net exchange (losses)/gains (110) 71
Impairment loss on available-for-sale

financial assets (1,522) —

Others (167) —

(1,799) 71
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8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Changes in inventories of finished goods and
work-in-progress

Trading merchandise sold, and raw materials
and consumables used

Provision for impairment of inventories

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of land use rights

Depreciation

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative
expenses)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Employment benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9)

Operating lease rental in respect of land and
buildings

Travelling and office expenses

Transportation expenses

Advertising expenses

Repairs and maintenance expenses

Other expenses

Representing:
Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses

31 March 2015

—F—-1 —Z=—N
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(E7)
(Restated)
2,172 (9,676)
447,278 514,994
2,881 1,392
1,992 1,840
94 126
6,625 7,567
1,321 327
726 -
64,622 61,900
7,288 7,280
15,813 12,718
6,551 5,641
192 214
2,276 1,211
5,588 5,905
565,419 611,439
466,600 530,537
13,448 12,901
85,371 68,001
565,419 611,439
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9.

10.

11.

31 March 2015

ETEMNAX 9. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES
BREEFMECETRFIFAZIOT : Employment benefit expenses, including directors’ emoluments, consist
of:
—ZE—h —_ZF—N
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
M - T& KRR Wages, salaries and allowances 56,926 54,306
14T Bonuses 2,033 2,317
RIREKA — EREEKETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3,241 2,968
BAIFEX Welfare, benefits and others 2,422 2,309
64,622 61,900
BB A — FH 10. FINANCE COSTS - NET
=2-3 —Z—m
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
IRITHESRF B WA Interest income from bank deposits 1,321 942
A BB RIETMRITERZ Interest expense on bank loans which contain a
MERZ repayment on demand clause (2,105) (2,306)
HinBR2HERE Interest expense on other borrowings - (37)
BMERE 2 FEHBMH Interest element of finance leases - (6)
(2,105) (2,349)
BEKAR — FH Finance costs — net (784) (1,407)
FMEBIEX 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

AARIEBREERERE - BBFERIIE
BERBEMAINKBARESBELEIR
BESZETERRREFIEZ16.5% (=ZZ—MN
F:16.5%) ZHERIBEEH - PEKIREE
ZARBBRECEMSH  BHERE255% (=
T—PUF :25%) c MAMEBAKL REEZ
RADBBEMERAEH @ HENF26.0%E
26.5% (= ZF — 04 : 26.0% £26.5%) ° £ E
FOBPIA S K & B R A BB BB PR AT 3 H A
BPIEBERET G BPBUERARERSSE
58/99/M SR M #A R FT1S L ©

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda. Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong. Group
companies established and operating in Mainland China are subject to
PRC corporate income tax at the rate of 25% (2014: 25%). Companies
established and operating in Canada are subject to Canadian income tax
at rates ranging from 26.0% to 26.5% (2014: 26.0% to 26.5%). A group
company established and operating in Macao is exempted from Macao
Complementary Tax under the Article 12 of Decree-Law No. 58/99/M
issued by Macao Government.
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BLR

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

Current taxation
— Hong Kong profits tax
— PRC corporate income tax
— Canadian income tax

QOver-provision in prior years
Deferred taxation relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences (Note 30)

rate as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rate

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible

Tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

Over-provision in prior years

Capital gain tax on disposal of property

Withholding tax (Note)

Others

Taxation charge

Note:

31 March 2015

=F—h —Z—
2015 2014
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(E7)
(Restated)
56 664
3,931 170
874 1,867
(230) —
5,069 (276)
9,700 2,425

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax

—ZE—h —ZE—Nm
2015 2014
FET T
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&31)

(Restated)

(30,024) 7,419
(4,954) 1,224
1,057 1,140
(443) (353)

531 128
2,072 906
(118) (711)
(230) —
3,500 —
8,171 —
114 91
9,700 2,425

During the year ended 31 March 2015, withholding tax is provided for at a rate
of 25% under the relevant Canadian tax regulations as a result of the planned
distribution of dividends from subsidiaries incorporated in Canada. The unremitted

FE retained earnings of these subsidiaries were intended to be reinvested as at 31

March 2014.
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12, %ﬁ C THABRKRSRITHEA 12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
1=

oA SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) EERTHRAZH (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
R_E—RAF=A=+—HFALQF The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
BEEZMERT : year ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

BHREMR

HeREH Contribution

Salaries MEZA  to retirement
e and  Discretionary benefit B
Espg Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FEx
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

HiTES Executive directors
AR (TTHER) Mr LAU Tak Wan (chief executive) - 3,419 - 158 3,517
Rz £ Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky - 1,168 - 54 1,202
REFFLE Mr CHEUNG Wai Ho - 770 - 37 807
HEBEE Mr CHONG Wing Kim, James - 864 - 18 882
BEELE Mr FUNG Wai Ching - 609 - 28 637
BUFyES Independent non-executive directors

ERAEL Dr Barry John BUTTIFANT 100 - - - 100
BER&EL Dr LIU Ngai Wing 75 - = = 75
ZEELE Mr CHOI Yuk Fan 50 - - - 50
225 6,830 - 295 7,350
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(b)

E=
S

12. DIRECTORS’,

31 March 2015

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

CITHAEBRERITEHA
CAC ),

EERTHARME (&) (a)
R-ZZE—NF=ZA=+—HFERELRR

EEF 2T ¢

ESHA Name of Director

HTES Executive directors
NEREE(TTHAEH) Mr LAU Tak Wan (chief executive)

RET S+ Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
FREREMZT) Mr WAN Chor Fai (Note 1)

RERAA Mr CHEUNG Wai Ho
Hé&%ﬁ(/ffﬁz‘z) Mr CHONG Wing Kim, James (Note 2)
REREE(HE2) Mr FUNG Wai Ching (Note 2)

BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
ERAEL Dr Barry John BUTTIFANT

BREET Dr LIU Ngai Wing

EEERE Mr GHOI Yuk Fan

Kzl R=Z=ZE—=FNA—BETHTE

=z
Ko RZZT—=FtA-+=HEZ#HF
BYITES -

EEERAFEREREZELTAME
(ZZ—MF : &) - RAFEBESZ N
FEEBRTM MBS kR EEBBAA
ZHEECE—NF: &) EEHE

BT EmERE(CZS —MF

fE) -

IuBEHFAL (b)
AEEEEANRERRTMALTRIER

ERTES - HMESEHN EXOHT
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100

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

RIkE R
e RzE Contribution
Salaries MifsTEa to retirement
ik and Discretionary benefit ok
Fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
FET T TE7 FAT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 3,156 - 145 3,301
- 1,078 - 49 1,127
- 525 - 12 537
- 754 50 35 839
- 618 - 10 628
- 429 - 19 448
100 - - - 100
75 - - - 75
50 - - - 50
225 6,560 50 270 7,105
Note 1: Resigned as an executive director on 1 September 2013.

Note 2: Appointed as an executive director on 23 July 2013.

No director waived any emoluments during the year (2014: Nil).
No emolument was paid to any directors as inducement to join
or as compensation for loss of office during the year (2014: Nil).
No director has been granted or has exercised any share option
during the year (2014: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year are the executive directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
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13.

31 March 2015

PENSION SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group has two defined contribution pension schemes, the retirement
scheme organised under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”), for its employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group under independently administered funds.

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and each of its employees make
monthly contribution to the scheme of approximately 5% respectively,
of the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees who have
terminated employment are utilised by the Group to reduce its future
contributions. As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have
significant unvested benefits.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Both the Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subjected to
a cap of HK$1,250 per month prior to 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500
per month thereafter, with contributions beyond these amounts being
voluntary. The contributions are fully and immediately vested in the
employees.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The Group and its relevant employees
make monthly contributions to the plans at the respective statutory rates
on the relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and bonus).
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire post-retirement benefits
payable to retired employees.

Canada

The Group is required to make monthly contribution to the National
Canada Pension Plan (“CPP”) in respect of its employees in Canada
based on the relevant employees’ salaries, with the exceptions of certain
excluded employment and benefits, at a rate 4.95% (2014: 4.95%)
of the employees’ salaries subject to a maximum annual pensionable
earnings of HK$365,000 (equivalent to CAD53,600) (2014: HK$387,000
(equivalent to CAD52,500)).
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31 March 2015

14. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately

HK$94,000 (2014: HK$332,000).
15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.
—F¥-—-1 —ZF—
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&31)
(Restated)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company (39,724) 8,175
Excluding:
Profit from discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the
Company = (3,181)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the
Company (39,724) 4,994
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31 March 2015

15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq)

(a) BER(E) (a) Basic (continued)
—ZE—h —_ZF—N
2015 2014
(&%)
(Restated)
LR INETETHE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(%) in issue ('000) 437,239 416,152
BREXN(ERE), & Basic (loss)/earnings per share
CEN &%) (rounded to HK cents per share)
— BELEER — Continuing operations (9-09) 1.20
— BERIEEEED — Discontinued operations - 0.76
(9.09) 1.96
(b) #E (b) Diluted
BN B BESE B ) 2 RITE L @AY - Dilutive (loss)/earnings per share is of the same amount as the
& b R EE (518 ),/ B SRR E A basic (loss)/earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive

(E18) /BFEREHE -
16. BHE

(DN
HA 9
ERER
VERER

HAZR

ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

16. GOODWILL

=23 —ZF—m
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost
Beginning of the year 25,901 28,201
Exchange differences (3,342) (2,300)
Provision for impairment (22,559) —
End of the year - 25,901
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16.

31 March 2015

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to operating segment. As at 31 March 2014 and during the
year ended 31 March 2015, all the goodwill is allocated to the “Personal
computers products distribution” segment in Canada.

The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. For the purpose
of impairment review, the recoverable amount of goodwill is determined
based on the higher of value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on
the annual financial budgets approved by management for the purpose
of impairment review covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated according to a constant-growth
assumption. The impairment test resulted in the impairment of goodwill
of HK$22,559,000 and property, plant and equipment of HK$288,000
(Note 17) of the personal computer products distribution segment.

The key factors used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

e XEE
Canada operations
—E2-1 =K
2015 2014
£ Fl =& Gross margin 9.3% 9.5%
R Growth rate 0% 1.7% t0 2.7%
IR (Fian) Discount rate (pre-tax) 18.9% 16.7%

BEMNERXRENXTNERBREBERR
RESMZHRNMEMETE - MERANEF
PR XY BERBLAT - W R BR T 5 T if 80 B
MEBOENENEAR EBREEZE LA
ZhHE XEER T RREHERGS -
HAELRERBENEZERER - £XMa0(E
ABREMTSRUBFEE T +FRBBET
B UHRHEIFE - BEERR/HEKFNT
BOFREMER  YEGEFEMHEER B
FIAZ AR - REE R & & IR Bl E Pk A
B E EREREAEDLHE - mERRZOEMA
ﬁ*%bi’-]T%Tﬁi%fﬁﬁ/ALEE‘E/E\JE)?JZEK%@ @

HIRFPAHEIB0.5% @ HEHNKEINE B
0.1% » SIBRFIZIEEBO0.2% » WEREH

BEAREEERMZZE -
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The budgeted growth rate and gross margin were determined by
management based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The annual discount rate is before tax and reflects market
assessments of the time value and the specific risks relating to the
relevant segment. Management has considered the above factors and
valuation and has also taken into account the business plan going
forward. The provision for impairment made during the year mainly
results from the significant decline in the personal computer products
market in North America starting from the second half of the financial
year which continues subsequent to the year end. Management is
of the view that the declined level of sales is not temporary and has
included such factor in devising its annual financial budgets. Judgment
is required to determine key factors adopted in the cash flow projections
and the changes to key factors can significantly affect these cash flow
projections. The extent of impairment provision could be affected if there
is a decrease in discount rate by more than 0.5%, or an increase in
gross margin by more than 0.1%, or an increase in growth rate by more
than 0.2%.
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Y% - BERRE 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£ G
RERZR
Leasehold
BE  improvements,
THEET RibREE furniture, k] BERIA IR
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor Moulds and Construction- &
buildings machinery equipment vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-BE=B=1+-BLEEE Year ended 31 March 2014
BUERFE Opening net book amount 55,180 11,151 6,847 2,870 142 310 76,500
ELER Exchange differences (56) - (26) @] - - (86)
&% Transfer 310 - - - - (310) =
HE Additions 1,500 1,275 1,136 205 108 - 4,224
e Disposals - (19 (107) (3) - - (158)
it Depreciation (1,89) (3216) (1611) (7125) (120) - (7,567)
HREEFE Closing net book amount 55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 130 - 72,916
RZE-ME=A=1-A At 31 March 2014
A Cost 61,323 108,196 41,395 6,364 24,387 - 241,615
ZiMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and mpairment (6,284) (98.999) (35,156) (4,059) (24,207) - (168,6%9)
REFE Net book amount 55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 180 - 72,916
BRASFEAT An analysis of cost or
valuation
A At cost 55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 130 - 72,916
gt At valuation = = = = = - -
55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 130 - 72,916
105 AENMEEERAERRA A
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ZE-RE-RCT-ALEE Year ended 31 March 2015
BNREFE Opening net book amount
ERZR Exchange differences
(2. 10) Revaluation (Note 2.1(d)
hE Additions
HE Impairment
3 Disposals
g Depreciation
BREEEE Closing net book amount

R=2-EFZf=t1-H At 31 March 2015
A Cost
ZiERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
BEEE Net book amount

REASTER An analysis of cost or valuation
BRE M cost
e At valuation

aMEEERAERRXA 106
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2015

(continued)
R B
RERRSE
Leasehold
BE  improvements,
1HREF RERBE furniture, RE BARIA
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor Moulds and @it
buildings machinery equipment vehicles tooling Total
FET FE7 FEx FET FE7 FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 130 72,916
(128) - (37) 4 - (164)
20,536 - - - - 20,536
1,240 1,050 569 - - 2,859
- - (703) (23) - (726)
(48,654) - (268) (328) - (49,250)
(1,408) (2,822) (1,646) (673) (76) (6,625)
26,630 1,425 4,154 1,283 54 39,546
26,630 109,246 41,449 3,978 24,337 205,640
- (101,821) (37,295) (2,695) (24,283) (166,094)
26,630 7,425 4,154 1,283 54 39,546
- 1,425 4,154 1,283 54 12,916
26,630 - - - - 26,630
26,630 7,425 4,154 1,283 54 39,546
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31 March 2015

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(@)

Net book value of the land and buildings is analysed as follows:

Land and buildings held in Hong Kong on:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years

Buildings held outside Hong Kong on:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years

5 (B ) - 3 AN 5 42 R SR PR R A

ABR - SEBATHR

DN
Rty e

SRR E

REFELRFTEMEMT

SHE R
—RRATHR X

FrERE

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Cost of sales

General and administrative expenses

Total depreciation

—ZE—h —_F—r
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
24,900 5,076
1,730 49,963
26,630 55,039

If the Group’s land and buildings were stated on historical cost
basis, the amounts would be as follows:

=£-3 =N
2015 2014
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
10,002 61,323
(3,366) (6,284)
6,636 55,039

Depreciation incurred during the year is attributable to the
following:

=£-3 ==
2015 2014
FET T
HK$°000 HK$°000
2,560 2,987
4,065 4,680
6,625 7,567
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MR_Z—WFEMA—H At 1 April 2014
B Revaluation

e Depreciation

NE Addition

HE Disposal

JE R 485 Exchange difference
R-E—ARF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015
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31 March 2015

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(o)

With effect from 1 April 2014, the Group revised its accounting
policy in respect of the measurement basis of land and buildings
from the cost model to the revaluation model in accordance with
HKAS 16 (Note 2.1 (d)), under which those assets are carried at
fair value based on valuation by the independent valuer.

An independent valuation of the Group’s land and buildings was
performed by an independent valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited,
to determine the fair value of the land and buildings as at 31
March 2015. The revaluation gains or losses are included in other
comprehensive income.

All land and buildings carried at fair value, by valuation method,
involved one or more of the significant inputs not based on
observable market data, and are classified as level 3 fair value
measurement hierarchy accordingly.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

=k il mEX #E
Hong Kong China Canada Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
5,076 49,351 612 55,039
19,723 315 498 20,536
(699) (600) (109) (1,408)

800 440 - 1,240

- (48,654) - (48,654)

— (102) (21) (123)
24,900 750 980 26,630
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HE Fair value at

Description 31 March 2015

BT

HK$

WAEBN — BF 24,900,000
Office units — Hong Kong

WAEEBEMN — MEX 980,000

Office units — Canada
MAEEN — FEH 750,000

Office units — China

s
EERAEREEEYEE Tk EE -

31 March 2015

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
Valuation Processes
The fair value of the Group ' s land and buildings at 31 March 2015 are
appraised by an independent professionally qualified valuer who hold a
recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent experience
in the locations and segments of the land and buildings valued. For all
land and buildings, their current use equates to the highest and best use.
Valuation techniques
The valuations were based on direct comparison approach which largely
used observable inputs (e.g. market rent, yield, etc.) and taking into
account the rental value per square meter arrived at with adjustments on
level, size, location and quality of the properties.
Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)
FEETALLE
HER % FEBETTA Range of
Valuation Technique Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
HFHKEME
(H1aE) Unit price per
(Note) square meter
BELER EEFBEREE 6,100 - 36,000
Direct comparison Degree of adjustment
factors
HELR A=RAREE 8,100
Direct comparison Degree of adjustment
factors
HELR H=FAEREE 8,200
Direct comparison Degree of adjustment
factors
Note:

Degree of adjustment factors directly affects the unit price per square meter.
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31 March 2015

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

()

During the year, the entire balances of property, plant and
equipment other than land and buildings of the personal
computer products distribution segment (HK$288,000) (Note 16)
and the electronic component distribution segment (HK$438,000)
were impaired due to the declining performance of these
segments.

In addition, impairment review on the property, plant and
equipment of HK$11,167,000 under the Electronic Products
Manufacturing segment is performed by management. For the
purpose of the review, the recoverable amount of the related
assets are determined based on value-in-use calculation which
uses cash flow projection based on the annual financial budget
approved by management. Cash flows beyond the annual period
are extrapolated according to a constant-growth assumption
covering a five-year period which in aggregate represents the
remaining useful lives of major machinery and equipment. The
key factors used for value-in-use calculations included gross
margin of 15.5% (2014: 19.0%), growth rate of 0% (2014: 2.6%)
and discount rate of 15.0% (2014: 15.0%).

The budgeted gross margin was determined by management
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The annual discount rate is before tax and
reflects market assessments of the time value and the specific
risks relating to the relevant segment. Judgment is required
to determine key factors adopted in the cash flow projections.
The impairment test is sensitive to changes in assumptions;
consequently, any adverse change in key assumptions would, in
isolation, cause an impairment loss to be recognised. If there is
a decrease in gross margin by more than 1.5%, or a decrease
in revenue by more than 5%, or an increase in discount rate
(pre-tax) by more than 4%, the carrying value would equal the
recoverable amounts.
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18.

Movements were:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

31 March 2015

FAET
HK$’000
(E7)
(Restated)

Year ended 31 March 2014
Opening net book amount, as previously reported 35,364
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.17(d)) 20,202
Opening net book amount, as restated 55,566
Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties (1,107)
Closing net book amount, as restated 54,459

Year ended 31 March 2015
Opening net book amount, as previously reported 34,591
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1(d)) 19,868
Opening net book amount, as restated 54,459
Addition 36
Fair value losses on revaluation of investment properties (26)
Disposal (50,929)
Closing net book amount 3,540

Net book value of investment properties is analysed as follows:
=Z2—-1 —ZF— —zT—=
2015 2014 2013
FHET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(E31) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)
Investment properties held outside Hong
Kong on:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years 3,540 53,349 54,456
Leases of over 50 years - 1,110 1,110
3,540 54,459 55,566
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18.

31 March 2015

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The periods of operating leases whereby the Group lease out its
investments properties range from 12 months to 24 months.

As at 31 March 2015, the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties were estimated by independent firm of professional valuers
on an open market basis. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions.

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by an independent valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March
2015 and 2014. The revaluation gains or losses is included in ‘fair value
losses on investment properties’ in consolidated income statement.

All investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation method with
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data and classified as level 3 in fair value measurement.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
Valuation processes

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 March 2015 and
2014 by an independent professionally qualified valuers who hold a
recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent experience
in the locations and segments of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best
use.

Valuation techniques

Valuations based on direct comparison approach largely uses observable
inputs (e.g. market rent, yield, etc.) and take into account the rental value
per square meter arrived at with adjustments on level, size, location and
quality of the properties.

Analytical trending method of valuation is based on estimate of the
value of properties as of 31 March 2015, with time adjustments using
appropriate price indices to derive the values of the property as of the
designated valuation dates.

There were no changes to these valuation techniques during the year.
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18.

BEWHE»)

ERFTBRREABDARBEQATVEFEESN

(B&=)

BE

Description

WAZER — HHE
Office units — China

BE

Description

MREBGL — FEM

Office units — Guangzhou

WAREA — LiF

Office units — Shanghai

BE —
Factory — China

s

R=-Z—HF
=A=t—-HA2aYHE
Fair value at

31 March 2015

BT
HK$

3,540,000

R-Z—MmF
=ZH=+—HBA¥{#E
Fair value at

31 March 2014

B
HK$

1,110,000

2,420,000

50,929,000

HBABBREEYESTIKER -

18.

31 March 2015

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

fh{ER %

Valuation Technique

BELER

Direct comparison

fh BT 3

Valuation Technique

BELR

Direct comparison

BHB A
Analytical trending
method

B (TF)
Cost (Buildings)
BEELR (L)

Direct Comparison
(Land)

Note:

FBETA

Unobservable inputs

E=FHEIZE
Degree of adjustment
factors

B A

Unobservable inputs

(H1at)
(Note)

EEFHBEREE
Degree of adjustment
factors

G RREE

Index adjusting factor

BEBE

Age adjustment

HERHBEREE
Degree of adjustment
factors

FEERTAEE
Range of
unobservable inputs
FFHKEE

Unit price per
square meter

8,200 — 11,000

FEETALE
Range of
unobservable inputs
I oREE

Unit price per
square meter

11,000

8,200

840 — 1,100

150

These inputs directly affect the unit price per square meter.
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—FE-AnF=HA=1+—H 31 March 2015
19. T ihFERRE 19. LAND USE RIGHTS
SEMHEL R THFEREATENEERE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating
N BREVFESNTAT : lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:
g1 —ZF—r
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
ZA=+—HLEE Year ended 31 March
BRYIBREFE - AT 23R Opening net book amount, as previously reported 9,410 9,648
SEBEREE (M iE2.1(d) Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1(d)) (4,328) (4,440)
BV EDFE - =7 Opening net book amount, as restated 5,082 5,208
NE Addition 2,112 —
#iH Amortisation (94) (126)
HE Disposal (5,008) —
BCRARTEDF (B Closing net book amount 2,092 5,082
R=A=+—H At 31 March
(DN Cost 2,112 6,359
EEE 3 Accumulated amortisation (20) (1,277)
BREDFEE Net book amount 2,092 5,082
H[E AT Geographical analysis:
—ZE—F —ZF— —F—=
2015 2014 2013
FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(&51) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)
LR BEBAINE Outside Hong Kong, held on:
10EH0F 2 A Leases of between 10 and 50 years 2,092 5,082 5,208
R-E—RE=A=+—0 GREEAES As at 31 March 2015, the remaining period of unexpired land use rights
+ bR T N\ES T E Y RBEAL - in the PRC ranged from 28 to 50 years.

aEMBEEERAERAA 114
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B B R 5T Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—FE-aF=H=1+—H 31 March 2015
20. HitbRHBEE 20. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS
£8
Group
—ZE—h —ZF—N
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
2ES Club debentures 540 710
He Deposits 209 262
ENHESEA Prepaid rental expenses 2,815 —
3,564 972
21. BENTES 21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY
£5
Group
—ZEg—h —_ZE—Nn
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
B AR Cost 2,519 2,519
BB R E Provision for impairment (2,519) (2,519)
BREFE Net book amount — =
B AR R B 2 B A R REB AT ¢ Details of the associated company, which is a limited liability company
established and operating in Japan, are as follows:
REERESR
EERTRBZER BotLEERE
B8 Issued and fully Percentage of FEX¥%
Name paid up capital equity interest held Principal activities
AMFERA S 23,400,000 H 47%  HE RBUEG R REE) T MoTes i
Daiwa Sound Company Limited YEN23,400,000 Trading and manufacturing of
speaker elements and components
BRI E QA RBE R FHRGERERE - Bit The interest in an associated company had been fully impaired due to its
ZEbD SR ERE R - continuous loss suffered in recent years.

115 eNEmEERAER QA
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22. JRHESHMEE 22,

31 March 2015

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

A ESREERT Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:
|
Group
=F—3 e
2015 2014
FET FETL
HK$’000 HK$’000
EmES Listed securities:
RigEER — & WEBTA Equity securities — Hong Kong, denominated in
BAL HK$ 451 308
EEEEERE Key management insurance:
REBAEHZEAE ' UETLA Fair value of the insurance contract, denominated
By in US$ 13,637 15,159
14,088 15,467
EmESTISEERE Market value of listed securities 451 308

SEEIEEZEEERBRET FRIT N
¥ /R % 312,153,000 jo(— & — M £ :
12,907,000 BB & (Hat27) °

SENEETEERRAORAAARER

NETAFENE  EREANEAIEATEE
BABRBRRBETRENEFEALL4%
LIRSS E AT SRRKAN80% ° tE

MAFEH ENEAR -

TRIETBE-_F-AFR-_FT-HF=A
=t HALZER=TAEE :

The key management insurance is pledged as collateral for the Group’s
borrowings amounting to approximately HK$12,153,000 (2014:
HK$12,907,000) (Note 27).

Discounted cash flow approach is adopted in the fair value measurement
of the Group’s key management insurance contract, with the significant
unobservable inputs used being the crediting rating of 4.4% per annum
which is adopted as the discount rate, and the expected death benefits
being estimated at 80% of cost of insurance. Significant changes in
these unobservable inputs in isolation would result in a significant change
in fair value measurement.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014:

—ZE—-h —Z—

2015 2014

FET F&T

HK$°000 HK$’000

iEE) Beginning of the year 15,159 14,808

NFEWE Fair value gain - 351

VERIERES Impairment loss (1,522) =

LEFS End of the year 13,637 15,159

BIEESFFREMERS WK Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the year

BB AR B35 W s B 1R Y included in other comprehensive income or loss at

FEEL the end of the year — 351

aMEEERAERARA 116
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23.

31 March 2015

FE 23. INVENTORIES
&8
Group
—ZE—h —ZF—N
2015 2014
FET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
AmEFE Trading merchandise 68,848 68,455
R Raw materials 61,570 56,138
ERm Work-in-progress 15,001 14,017
P n Finished goods 21,523 24,679
FHE — B8 Inventories — gross 166,942 163,289
FRRELRERE Provision for impairment (50,692) (47,811)
FE — #E Inventories — net 116,250 115,478
HieE - Notes:

(i) SECZETKABRARERARBEEHERK
AN R 49 55449,450,0007 L(= Z — 4 F ¢
505,318,00087T) °

(ii) BN WEBFRHE R —WMFE=A4
=+ —HIEFE W EfF+HEA2498,000 %

(ii)

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$449,450,000 (2014: HK$505,318,000).

During the year, no inventories have been written off. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, inventories amounting to HK$2,498,000 were
written off.

T o

(iii) FEREEHNT : (iii) Movement in the provision for inventories is as follows:

&8
Group

—Z-3 —Z—m
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIUA—H At 1 April 47,811 48,917
GFERERE Provision for inventory impairment 2,881 1,392
Bt Write-off against provision - (2,498)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 50,602 47,811

"7 eNEmEERAER QA
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24, EWEXREBEREWERE

U & SRR IR
OB - RN RARIRR (B

R EE Notes receivable
HiaE -
(a) AEEZ EREERBEZREENT &
ABEAL -
7SI HKS$
AR¥E RMB
Eiv us$
mit CAD

RS S RRIAE E R E A FERE -

SEZREFEZAA  FHib RIS XRIAT
BEETNEERR -

EMEEZERERAQA 118
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Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment

31 March 2015

24. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

%£E
Group
—Z2—-3 —Z—[q
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
103,531 110,842
(22,715) (21,476)
80,816 89,366
11,470 7,058
92,286 96,424
Notes:
(@) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:
£8
Group
—2-F T
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
18,913 18,005
35,226 31,810
35,977 45,647
13,415 20,380
103,531 110,842

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as
customer base is widely dispersed.
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24, EWEXREBEREWEE 2

Hiet - (&)

(0)

AEBZ ABHHERD - RA=TXRE
NtTRe BREERBIZAMHEERERT
ZIRERDMTINT

PRATR
ATRE-B=TR
R S

R—ZTE—HAFEF=ZA=+—"8' &5
21,847,000 T Z B & X RBE(=ZF — 1
£F : 23,541,000 7T ) £ E B BB I & F R
B o WERIEW R ZE5ITRHE #RIEHAC Bk
BN RS o L5 SR IIRE HE N B &
HOBRER DATRATE :

DRARTR
ATRE—BHZ=TX
BB—AZTX

TRARIRENERERXREANEEES
TERSERME TR L ENBEERE
TREREBIEARRNEEZE - REY
77 B E I AR AR

R-ZE—RAF=A=+—H8 BREEKE
22,715,000/ jo(=Z — 4 4F : 21,476,000
BIT) R AT A E kA& B R ERE BT
12 o (BRI E /) FEUGR £ 22k B R T R A
IMEBERRHHES ©

24,

Less than 60 days
60 days to 120 days
Over 120 days

Less than 60 days
60 days to 120 days
Over 120 days

31 March 2015

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Majority of the Group’s sales are made with credit terms generally ranging
from 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the
dates on which the relevant sales were made is as follows:

5=

Group
—Z-3 —ZE—m
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’'000
66,591 65,065
12,049 20,494
24,891 25,283
103,531 110,842

At 31 March 2015, trade receivables of approximately HK$21,847,000
(2014: HK$23,541,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired
because these mainly relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables by the days of overdue repayment is as follows:

558
Group

—2-F —Z—n
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
12,049 19,652
7,838 1,495
1,960 2,394
21,847 23,541

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired
has been assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparty default rates and taking into account the credit insurance
coverage. The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults in
the past.

At 31 March 2015, trade receivables of approximately HK$22,715,000
(2014: HK$21,476,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers who are in
unexpected difficult economic situations.

119 eNEmEERAER QA
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FaF=A=T-F

24, EWEXREREVRERE#®

Biat - (&)

31 March 2015

24. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

() FEU & BRI R E R B ZE T ¢ () Movement in the provision for trade receivables is as follows:
£5
Group
—Z-3 —ZF—p
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RmA—H At 1 April 21,476 22,075
FEUYLE R IE R E & Provision for impairment of trade receivables 1,321 327
F T AR LU B O FE Uk 2 5 AR T 3 8 Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (82) (926)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 22,715 21,476

(d) MR

BREISAE  BEREBEZEEELASR
HAFE R-_Z—HFE=A=+—HBHFA
KRB RG AE=EHELBRETEAR
mFEHEHAA180 KA (=ZZF —M4F : 180
AA) c EEPEEHAARE -

25. il‘gﬁ%ﬁtlﬁ s e R E i E WK

TETRIE Prepayments
HEZS Rental deposits
E At B WK IE Other receivables

R-E-—RAFER-Z-—HNFEF=A=+—H &
NRAEESAREABEFEZRANERK
BNESER -

aMEEERAERAXA 120
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(d) Notes receivable

The carrying amounts of notes receivable approximate their fair values
due to their short maturity. As at 31 March 2015, all the notes receivable
represent bank acceptance notes issued by third parties with average
maturity of within 180 days (2014: 180 days), which are denominated in

RMB.

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
58 NG
Group Company
—E—-F —ZF—q —=E—1 —Z—q
2015 2014 2015 2014
FETT FAET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
9,985 10,366 112 141
63 63 - —
1,348 1,532 - —
11,396 11,961 112 141

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, prepayments mainly represented

payment in advance to suppliers for the purchase of inventories and

prepaid rental expenses.
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26.

31 March 2015

RERBEEEY 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
£| AT
Group Company
—E-—-F —ZT—y —ZT—F% —ZF—
2015 2014 2015 2014
FET FET FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEEEAR Cash at banks 71,309 55,328 469 182
Rers Cash on hand 360 205 - —
71,669 919,65 469 182
RekBReEEBYRETELBRENATRERSE Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the following for the
MEXRF purposes of the statement of cash flows:
£8
Group

—E—h —_ZF—Kr
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
ReRBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 71,669 55,533
IRITE (Mt 27) Bank overdrafts (Note 27) (2,690) (3,531)
Re  HeEEYW Cash and cash equivalents 68,979 52,002

ReRBReEBWATIER REN

ATT HK$
AR RMB
ETT Us$
T CAD
HAfty Others

RITFERRBEE R RITERF DN RN
K B AT TE B9 B A R BRER A B U - S=E 2 R
TREBTHAREER2HBEERRTREEE
BRARRT - EEANAREEIMNE LA
PR - B ILIR R BEEFHIINERE

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

£E AE

Group Company
—E-1 —Z—m 1 —ZF—K
2015 2014 2015 2014
FHET T FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
14,813 19,751 469 182
36,860 8,171 - —
4,303 11,052 - —
15,657 16,381 - —
36 178 - =
71,669 55,538 469 182

Cash at banks earns interest either at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates or fixed rates determined at deposit dates. The Group’s
cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with
banks in Mainland China or Hong Kong. The conversion of these RMB-
denominated balances into foreign currencies in Mainland China and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government
of the People’s Republic of China.
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31 March 2015

27. B& 27. BORROWINGS
55
Group
—ZE—1 —Z—q
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
E Current
RITIE X (M7 26) Bank overdrafts (Note 26) 2,690 3,531
HHERITER Short-term bank borrowings 10,000 5,000
RITIEFEER Trust receipts bank loans 44,771 66,706
R—FREE 2 RITER Portion of bank borrowings repayable within one
year 5,934 12,944
BBE—FERIHRHEREREFR  Portion of bank borrowings due for repayment
ZRITER after one year which contains a repayment on
demand clause 11,410 17,347
s Total 74,805 105,528
HE—_Z—FHF=A=+—H —F%BIIH\KR As at 31 March 2015, bank borrowings of approximately HK$11,410,000
HERBRKBERZIBITERL 11,410,000 7 7T (2014: HK$17,347,000) due for repayment after one year are subject to
—E P4 : 17,347,000/87T) ' E 0 AR repayment on demand clause and, accordingly, has been classified as
BBE - current liabilities.
ETEZRRERKEBETNEX - £EER SR Disregarding the repayment on demand clauses, the maturity of
T borrowings is as follows:
£8
Group
—ZE—-1 —Z—n
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
—ER - REREDTEERZE  Within 1 year, with reference to the repayment
schedule 63,395 88,181
—FEE-FR Between 1 and 2 years 748 5,937
—FERFNR Between 2 and 5 years 10,662 9,730
RAEME Over 5 years — 1,680
74,805 105,528
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—F—AaF=HA=+—H

27. 18w

{EERRMER L TEBAER

BT HK$
e us$
ilibze CAD

REFB  SEERARFHEE - EMEF

BEEMT

IRITEFEEN Trust receipt bank loans
BE Borrowings

RITHEL Bank overdrafts

BRTEEREE  REH%AE12,153,000%8 T(=
T P04 : 12,907,000 ) HEZEEER
i (KisE 22) (EIR SN - FTE B A EIKIF -

R-ZE-—RFER-—ZF-HOFEF=A=+—H "M
BEREREERRFERMT -

31 March 2015

27. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
£8
Group

—E—-4 —Z—q
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
27,028 59,544
45,087 42,453
2,690 8,531
74,805 105,528

The Group’s borrowings are all subject to floating interest rate and the
weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

g1 —ZF—m
2015 2014
HK$ Uss CAD HK$ Us$ CAD
BT ET y/ b7 V- E Y/
2.31% 2.35% - 2.45% 2.20% —
2.24% 0.75% - 2.32% 0.88% —
- - 3.75% — — 3.75%

Except for the Group’s borrowings of approximately HK$12,153,000
(2014: HK$12,907,000) secured by the key management insurance
contract (Note 22), all other borrowings are unsecured.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of borrowings
approximate their fair values.
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—FE-AnF=HA=1+—H 31 March 2015
28. EfNEXERE 28. TRADE PAYABLES
ANEPDHERREA—RBE=TRESTK ° The majority of the suppliers grant credit period ranging from 30 to 60
days.
FEEERBBRE ST ¢ The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
@

Group
—E—F1 —Z—
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DLRNTE Less than 60 days 47,269 70,737
ANTRE—BHZ=+X 60 days to 120 days 10,506 10,187
BE—-—A=1+X Over 120 days 155 3,512
57,930 84,436

FERT & SERRTEIZ A T AR - Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

£m

Group
=%-3 =T
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TT HKS$ 4,806 7,450
AR#E RMB 16,238 12,991
7T Uss$ 30,070 54,860
T CAD 6,816 9,135
57,930 84,436

EMEEERERQA 124
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29.

30.

FEAS 8 A e HL B RROR

e % & M AEAT

B
FEf 2 2R A

HEMBRAREHRES
22 AR

H e 58
E MK

EFEFTS R

29.

Accrued salaries and
bonuses

Receipts in advance

Accrued operating
expenses

Payables relating to
retention arrangement
for disposal of
subsidiaries

Other tax payables

Other payables

30.

ERAERMNAKBRANREELAREH AR
B - MRES IR KR — S B - Al
A RIRIERRSHEERRLEMEH A EERE
e AHEERBER L& REEE 2K

R

BB IAAE
EEBIARE

TR & B

31 March 2015

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

£8 AFE

Group Company
—ZE-—-h —ZE—N —_E—h —ZF—N
2015 2014 2015 2014
FHET FET FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
6,565 5,645 - -
1,542 28855 - —
9,722 5,496 857 301
- 2,293 - —
4,501 1,485 - —
1,703 769 - —
24,033 18,043 857 301

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The balances shown in the consolidated
balance sheet are, after appropriate offsetting, as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax liabilities

£8

Group
—Z2-1 —Z—
2015 2014
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(E75)
(Restated)
115 241
(12,311) (4,159)
(12,196) (8,918)
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31 March 2015

30. EEMREH =) 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
EEFR I FEEBINT ¢ The movement in net deferred income tax is as follows:
= |
Group
—ZE—-h —ZT
2015 2014
FET FETL
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&71)
(Restated)
A4 Beginning of the year (3,918) (4,194)
EFER(EHE), R (Charged)/credited to the income statement

(et 11) (Note 11) (5,069) 276
EYEBHREZHE Charged to property revaluation reserve (3,209) =
LEFS End of the year (12,196) (3,918)

FREEHREERAE 2 EH(HEF — B
[ 2 AEERIEEHAT) AT

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:

EEHREEE Deferred tax assets
HE
Tax losses
—Z2—-3 T
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
HR 4] Beginning of the year 241 6
ERER (), R (Charged)/credited to the income statement (126) 235
HBZR End of the year 115 241

aMEEERAERRAXA 126
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31 March 2015

30. EELEREH = 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
EEFBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
—Z—-41
2015
EBERE MEE i f#
ME B\ Accelerated Revaluation
Withholding tax gain of e
tax depreciation properties Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RIEA—HB - WAT23RK At 1 April, as previously
reported - 273 - 273
SEHHR Change in accounting policy
(Hii#2.1(a)) (Note 2.1(d)) - - 3,886 3,886
REA—R - £5| At 1 April, as restated - 273 3,886 4,159
ERBRIE(K) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 8,171 (236) (2,992) 4,943
LIEE AR RS Charged to revaluation
reserve - - 3,209 3,209
W=A=+—8 At 31 March 8,171 37 4,103 12,311
—Z—n
2014
MERBIETE LY
HEHE Accelerated Revaluation
Withholding tax gain of @A
tax depreciation properties Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REUA—H ' MAT2 R At 1 April, as previously
reported — 259 — 259
B BORE Change in accounting policy
(Kt 2.1(a) (Note 2.1(d)) - - 3,941 3,941
REA—AB - E7 At 1 April, as restated - 259 3,941 4,200
ERERLE/(RER) Charged/(credited) to the
income statement — 14 (55) (41)
N=A=+—H At 31 March - 273 3,886 4,159
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30.

31.

31 March 2015

BLEREB =) 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
BELEREBEEEE) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
EEFRIEEE T ERIE K 7] aE £ e 2 5w A Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
MERNHEBHEBENZ AR SAULEH the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
HEBEER ASBIYTERZFARHED taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
237,554,000/ 7t (= Z — Y 4 : 193,867,000 tax assets of approximately HK$40,371,000 (2014: HK$44,280,000)
BT ) ERELETIAE E 440,371,000 (= in respect of accumulated losses amounting to approximately
T — Q4 : 44,280,000 70 ) ¢ bt & FiIE E IR HK$237,554,000 (2014: HK$193,867,000) that can be carried forward
AIEEERNERE 2 ce R=ZZT—RF= against future taxable income. As at 31 March 2015, accumulated tax
A=+—8  Z:FEEE % 181,390,000 loss amounting to approximately HK$181,390,000 are expiring in 2015 to
T R ZE-—RE_ZE—AFHMEERCCE 2019 (2014: approximately HK$144,615,000, expiring in 2014 to 2018),
— U4 : #144,615,0008 TR =T —ME = while the remaining amounts can be carried forward indefinitely to offset
=— )\FEHREER) - e T Bl ] ERR 8 #5 against future taxable income.
W2 FERRB i ) o
IEFEFT 1S & £ 283,000 L (=& — M & - Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$283,000 (2014: HK$8,266,000)
8,266,000 7T ) B it AR Z B K have not been recognised for withholding tax in relation to the unremitted
WhETRHEREMBERET KB A F A earnings of certain subsidiaries established in the PRC and other
HARAEENET - ZeBEFBHEEHRIRE - R countries. These amounts are expected to be reinvested. As at 31 March
—E-—RF=A=+—HB SFERELHBR 2015, the Group had unremitted earnings totaling HK$2,829,000 (2014:
B AR 458 52,829,000 T( =T — PO 4 : HK$35,416,000), of which HK$2,829,000 (2014: HK$3,920,000) and
35,416,000/ 7C) * SERFE R INEAK L Nil (2014: HK$31,496,000) were attributable to the Group’s subsidiaries
T 2B A E DB 2,829,000 C(=ZF—M established in the PRC and Canada respectively.
£ : 3,920,000 L) REET(ZZ —MF :
31,496,000 7% 7T.)
g 2 31. SHARE CAPITAL
—E—-h —ZE—
2015 2014
BB H{E iz 15 & B HfE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
Fhie FET Fhg FET
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
JRIE Authorised:
TR REE Ordinary shares of
0.10% 7T HK$0.10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Ri7EE BT
No. of shares HK$
BEETRHBEEBER : Ordinary shares issued and fully paid:
R-ZE—=FNA—H As at 1 April 2013 394,238 39,424
BT SRR (41 77) Placing of news shares (Note) 43,000 4,300
REZZE—NFER=_T—hHF As at 31 March 2014 and 2015
EHEF—E 437,238 43,724

Bat -

RZE—=FAhA=-++tH EEBTTEREHK
% LAAT i & & B8 0.297% JT % 17 T 43,000,000 A%
FEBBRRG - AR AR TATESOREFEA
12,470,000 7T * & A 4,300,000 7T A B & B AR #8
#17,682,00078 JL(NF 488,000 8 THEE %) A
BR ARG RE ©
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Note:

On 27 September 2013, the Company completed a placing of 43,000,000 new
shares at the placing price of HK$0.29 per share. The gross proceeds received
by the Company from the placing were approximately HK$12,470,000, among
which HK$4,300,000 was credited to the share capital account and the balance of
HK$7,682,000 (net of professional fees of HK$488,000) was credited to the share
premium account.
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—FE-aF=H=1+—H 31 March 2015
32. f#f& 32. RESERVES
(a) £H (a) Group
AfthE
tHEE
Efifit
Available- (R5TFB)/
BRfE -t EERE for-sale nE REEA
(H ) BRI E (2 (i) financial Eftf%  (Accumulated
Capital Capital ReRE Statutory assets Property losses)/
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation revaluation retained @it
(Note (i) reserve reserve (Note (i) reserve reserve earnings Total

Fiér Fér FiEr Fiér Fén Fén FEn FEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-BEWA—F " At 1 Apil 2014, as

L previously reported 41,201 1,402 (3,991) 90 243 = (87,897) (48,959)
SHURED Changes in accounting
(Wit2.11d) policies (Note 2.1(c) - - - - - = 11,654 11,654

RZZ-MWEMA—A - At 1 April 2014, as

&J restated 41,201 1,402 (8,991) 90 23 - (76,243) (87,208)
EEER Loss for the year - - - - - - (39,724) (39,724)
REMi238) Dividend (Note 36) - - - - - - (21,862) (21,862)
HRRDEE Reduction of share premium

(W s2m)) (Note 82(b)(i) - - - - - - 233,196 233,196
A ESHEAE Fair value gain on

A¥ENE avallable-for-sale

financial assets - - - - 143 - - 143
THRETFER Revaluation gain on
Wi B land and buildings,
net of tax - - - - - 17,163 - 17,163
NEERZE Currency translation
differences - - (9,041) - - - - (9,041)
RZZ-1% At 81 March 2015
ZB=t-H 41,201 1,402 (13,032) 90 386 17,163 95,367 142,577
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32. f#E=

(a) £®(E
RZF-=#NA-A" At 1 April 2013, as previously
MHZH reported
itHRE Changes in accounting policies
(Wit2.11d) (Note 2.1(d))

RZF-ZENmA-8 )| At 1 April 2013, as restated

g - 25 Profit for the year, as restated

NEERER Currency translation differences

IRIESHEAE Fair value gain on available-for-
A¥EkE sale financial assets

RZZ-WE At 31 March 2014, as restated
=A=+-8 &}

Hia# -

0 REBZERNFERBADRRETZ
BRNEERBER—NANNEEE
EREEETARRNKBRQFBRA
HEMEZZR  MER=ZTZTZT
F=A=1+—BHERFERNREIR
IR 7S TED B 2 A B9 &2 #42 51,594,000
BT °

(ii) MEARREZ B QR ZEEEARRE
(RN EENG P A IS
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32. RESERVES (continued)

31 March 2015

(a) Group (continued)
Eft

EfiEE  (23ER)/

ERGR v itk Other REEH

() BEGR (W) financlal  (Accumulated

Capital Capital bl Statutory assets losses)/
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation retained &5t
(Note (i)) reserve reserve (Note (i) reserve earnings Total
AT FHT AT AT TET AT AT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
41,201 1,402 1,387 90 (88) (96,239) (62,247)
- - - - - 11,821 11,821
41,201 1,402 1,387 90 (88) (84,418) (40,426)
- — — — — 8,175 8,175
- - (6,378) — - - (6,378)
- — - — 331 - 331
41,201 1,402 (3,991) 90 243 (76,243) (37,298)

Notes:

Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between

the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company
and the nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
transferred to the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in

1994, and the credit of HK$51,594,000 from share capital as a

result of a reduction of the Company’s share capital taken place
during the year ended 31 March 2000.

(i

Statutory reserve of a subsidiary in Mainland China can be utilised

to offset future losses or increase the capital of the subsidiary.



& G B %5 ¥R N R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—F—AaF=HA=+—H

32. B

(b)

RAF
JA =

—HEmA—H
HIRAES

i (8 (132 (i)

At 1 April 2014
Reduction of share

32.

premium (Note (i)

A% B (H15E38) Dividend (Note 38)

NEEEE Loss for the year

R-ZE—8F At 31 March 2015
=A=+—H

R-ZT—=FMA—H At1 April 2013

AEEEE Loss for the year

RZZT—MF At 31 March 2014
=H=+FH

HiaE

(ii

ARBZBARBEBEER — 1L
NNFEEERARRREITZROE
EALAR# Daiwa BVI Limited B2
TEBRERENRBAREEFEM
BEZEB MER=-ZTTF=A
=+— B ERFERNEHRRAE
EmEERNZ51,594,00057TT °

BREARE-NN—FREE &
ABBA DK TRER  ERETEE
RERERMARE - AR
R DK+ 20 () DK 1R T BE AN HRE
BIPZBEHH()EEFEERE
EREBTRARKD HE 2 #E -

RZT—NMFALA+T=ZBAARAIE
TZREBEFRELE  RAIRED
38 38 Bl 5 233,196,000 7% Tt I% 12 '
8 KRR BeTEIE -

31 March 2015

RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

S ON-
BB B R E (Kt (i)
Capital Capital 2B R
redemption reserve Accumulated st
reserve (Note (i) losses Total
FET FET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,402 72,309 (165,352) (91,641)
- - 233,196 233,196
- - (21,862) (21,862)
- - (94) (94)
1,402 72,309 45,888 119,599
1,402 72,309 (165,020) (91,309)
— (332) (332)
1,402 72,309 (165,352) (91,641)
Notes:

(i

The capital reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued ordinary shares of Daiwa BVI Limited and
the value of net assets of its underlying subsidiaries pursuant to
a group reorganisation in 1994, plus the credit of HK$51,594,000
from share capital as a result of a reduction of the Company’s
share capital took place during the year ended 31 March 2000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, capital reserve is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of capital reserve if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium account.

On the Company’s annual general meeting held on 12 September
2014, the reduction of share premium of HK$233,196,000
for offsetting against the Company’s accumulated losses was
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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33. EFBRERER

BRBLAT(B1R), RS TER (£ A), (a)

EEZBREFEALR

BRBLAT(B1R), e M B E &Lk
AEEE

HEHA

A SR

I K

(B!

JRE Wt B 5 R TRURL (B
YR - R RRERIE
R E R
BEME N FEER
AEHESREERE

HELIERRE  REMERYE

W RREz MR),/
&8

HEMBRRIBBRES 2
Z BRI TR

MERSRE
i

B 25 22 PR OB B R

B HOE - 2 B R ROR
B 05

B 22 PR R L 4 0B

RETFH(ER) EEZRS
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31 March 2015

33. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(used in)/generated from operations:

(Loss)/profit before income tax including
discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of inventories

Fair value losses on investment properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

(Gains)/losses on disposals of land use
rights, investment properties and property,
plant and equipment

Adjustments upon final settlement of
retention arrangement in relation to
disposed subsidiaries

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit (before income tax to cash

—E—-1 —Z—
2015 2014
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
(&%)

(Restated)

(30,024) 10,600
(1,321) (942)
2,105 2,349
6,719 7,693
22,559 —
1,321 327
726 —
2,881 1,392
26 1,107
1,522 —
(27,139) 41
- (3,181)
(20,625) 19,386
(3,653) (30,313)
2,817 (2,455)
3,606 6,700
(29,885) 15,446
5,760 (2,767)
(41,980) 5,997
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33.

34.

EHBELERER 2

(b) HEEHRERERA HELHER
- REVERNE  HBRREHM
BREARE
fRmERE
BNHES BB ()

HELTHERE  REWHE
S&/E - T i
Was/(F1R) % E

HE T ERE  REWE
KM - #as kR
PiS3RIR

Hiat -

REBEMENERGE SEEEALE
B RHeREEEEAHEMENET
BmeeEA - WEABRERERANEESE
BRI & ABREN BB AL BRE o

ERIEEEXR

HE-—Z-—=F=A=1+—HIL5H  £BL
ETHESBRARZEBRETBELFE=H
RR(E /63,168,000 T E Ml - HESE
RAEBREBEFZHRGEHER - HESER
DHERERIEKEEXTE BE-_T—WNF=A
=+—HLEFE  ZBERIEKEEB2IH W
ABLENBAREEHEFHAEREN KL
2 o

31 March 2015

33. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (continued)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

disposals of land use rights, investment properties and
property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount

Prepaid rental expenses (Note)

Net gains/(losses) on disposals of land use

rights, investment properties and property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of land use rights,
investment properties and property,
plant and equipment

34.

—ZE—h —_ZF—N
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
105,187 155
(5,633) —
27,139 (41)
126,693 114

Note:

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of
properties, the Group is entitled to occupy certain portion of the disposed
properties free of rental charges and management fee for a period of 36
months from the date of disposal. The rental value of such occupancy is
recognised as prepaid rental expenses and would be amortised to the
income statement over the rent-free period on a straight-line basis.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in a disposal group principally involving in the distribution
of electronic components to an independent third party at a total cash
consideration of approximately HK$63,168,000. The disposal group was
classified as discontinued operations. The entire profit from discontinued
operations during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented the
adjustment in relation to the final settlement arrangement stipulated in
the sale and purchase agreement for the disposed subsidiaries.
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35. REFE s Z2EMITA

REERAZRERED2EMITEAEEN

T

e

EHEE

AL ESREE
JE s SR AR TR R R AR
12 M EL A R UK
RBeMREEEY

EHEE

A & S AR TR

faE

AN P eSS ARE S

ENMBEEERABER QA
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

31 March 2015

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

Group
—ZE—1
2015
At &
cREE
Available-
for-sale fEEREWRIE
financial Loans and wE
Financial assets assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Available-for-sale financial assets 14,088 - 14,088
Trade and notes receivables - 92,286 92,286
Deposits and other receivables - 1,620 1,620
Cash and cash equivalents - 71,669 71,669
14,088 165,575 179,663
—E—-1
2015
sEas
¢ $12%N
Financial
liabilities
at amortised e
Financial liabilities cost Total
FET FExT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Trade payables 57,930 57,930
Borrowings 74,805 74,805
Accruals and other payables 22,491 22,491
155,226 155,226
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—F—AaF=HA=+—H 31 March 2015
35. REEEISZeMIA 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(%) (continued)
—ZF—
2014
A HE
SRMEE
Available-
for-sale fEE & EWFIA
financial Loans and FEXIE]
THEE Financial assets assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AL ECmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,467 — 15,467
FEUL & R TE I R IR 4R Trade and notes receivables — 96,424 96,424
Be K H A R R Deposits and other receivables = 1,857 1,857
HERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents — 55,538 515,538
15,467 153,814 169,281
—ZE—q
2014
SRaE -
brg: £ [DIN
Financial
liabilities
at amortised 1 (E
THEE Financial liabilities cost Total
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
e FBRTE Trade payables 84,436 84,436
TE Borrowings 105,528 105,528
T B R K E A K Accruals and other payables 15,688 15,688
205,652 205,652
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35. REFE s Z2EMITA

31 March 2015

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(&) (continued)
NG| Company
—E—F1 —ZF—
2015 2014
FET FETL
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEE—EERENKE Financial assets — loans and receivables
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 469 182
SRMERFE  RBHERE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
FE A~ 2 PR B EL i JE A< 3K Accruals and other payables 857 301
36. H&iE 36. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

R-ZE-—RFR_ZT-—HNF=A=+—H0 %
REMBEF AR £ EBOMHE - EE
R RIERFHEEHAAERBIITOT :

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

&8

Group
—Z2-1 —ZT—n
2015 2014
FET FA&ET
HK$°000 HK$’000
F—FNA Not later than one year 3,523 3,620
F_EEF=FN Later than one year and not later than three years 6,527 9,191
10,050 12,811

CEEZEERO-RAH—FE=

oip

o

R-F-AER-FT-ME=A=+—F &
MR H A EAZ AR -

R-E-—AFER-Z-HNF=A=+—H0 2
AR BER AL -

RZE-—RAF=A=+—H FERRIFIR
BEAZHAALE -
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Generally, the Group’s operating leases are for terms of one to three
years.

The Group did not have other significant commitments at 31 March 2015
and 2014.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company did not have any
significant commitments.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group and the Company have no significant
contingent liabilities.
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37.

31 March 2015

HHBATMNKREREWKE 37. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
REIRE — AF FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
—ZE—-F —ZE—N0
2015 2014
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
I ETRRMD ARE - IRAKAE Unlisted shares/investments, at cost 44,715 44,715
JE U BT B R R RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 318,884 340,542
R ORERAE Less: provision for impairment (200,000) (200,000)
118,884 140,542
AREZEEWNBARIERAT : Particulars of significant subsidiaries are as follows:
R=B=1-A
FERERA L
HRRL/ R Percentage
Place of IEREHY ERTRMERA of equity
A7 incorporation/ Principal place  Issued and interestheld  EEERER TTER
Company establishment of operation fully paid up capital as at 31 March Type of legal entity Principal activities
%1 N
2015 2014
ERRERE
Interests held directly
Daiwa BVI Limited AERAES RERAES 10,000 %7 100%  100% BREELA RARR
British Virgin Islands  British Virgin US$10,000 Limited liability company Investment holding
Islands
BEEEER
Interests held indirectly
ANEZERAA AERAER &h i 100%  100% BREFAA RELR
Daiwa Associate Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong Us$2 Limited liability company Investment holding
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37. HWE LA RMIR?
ARRIE — QA4
2Ad
Company
RiEsERR2)

Interests held indirectly (continued)

Elite Gentury Holdings Limited

HRETIZARAT

Cypress Electronics Limited

ANESERAA

Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

ANSEARAT

Daiwa Manufacturing Limited

EEREETARAR

Vastpoint Imtec Electronics Limited

aNMEmEERAER-AA 138
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REWHKE 37.
&)

EUEAVE TR

Place of TEEEHY
incorporation/ Principal place
establishment of operation
AERLER &%

British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong
&% &%

Hong Kong Hong Kong
&% B

Hong Kong Hong Kong
&% &%

Hong Kong Hong Kong
&% B

Hong Kong Hong Kong

31 March 2015

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continueq)

BRTRARRE
Issued and
fully paid up capital

10,000%7
US$10,000

2R
HKS2

LER10087T

Ordinary shares of HK$100; and

ERZBETR 3,000,000
BT

Non-voting deferred shares of
HK$3,000,000 (Note (i)

4ET
HK$4

100%T
HK$100

R=B=1-A
i RER AL
Percentage
of equity

interestheld  EEERER

as at 31 March  Type of legal entity
Z2-1 CF

2015 2014

100%  100% BREELA
Limited liability company

100%  100% BRELAR

Limited liability company

100%  100% BREELA
Limited liability company

100%  100% AREMAF
Limited liability company

100%  100% BREELA
Limited liability company

TERH

Principal activities

RAZR

Investment holding

RESTHEER
Manufacturing of electronic
products

mEERAREEE
RiTHfRis

Provision of management
and administrative
service to group
companies

REE TR RANET
ZXEERB

Manufacturing of electronic
products

BRI {15
Distribution of electronic
components
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37.

YNECT|

oD M
all=

S 5

27

Company

BEEERRE)

Interests held indirectly (continued)

IRENEREFRITARAR
(Beijing Daiwa Vastpoint Electronics
Technology Limited)

HEEF(TR)ERAT

(China Faith Electronics (Heyuan) Limited)

aNET(TR)ERAR
(Daiwa Electronics (Heyuan) Company
Limited)

AM(ER)EFIZERAA
(Daiwa (Zhaoging) Electronics Industrial
Limited)

SREX(TR)ERAR
(Unity Industrial (Heyuan) Limited)

rERES TR ARAR
(Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shenzhen)
Limited)

REETEA(LE)ARAT

Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shanghai) Ltd.

SREL/ R
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

i
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

i
Mainland China

Gl
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

ANBEEREKRKE 37.
B — ARl#

ITLEHY
Principal place
of operation

il
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

Gl
Mainland China

il
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

31 March 2015

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continued)

BRARMRRA
Issued and
fully paid up capital

i RE#EA800,000 AR
Registered and paid up capital of
RMB800,000

A RE AR 1,200000% T
Registered and paid up capital
US$1,200,000

i REAAR3,600000%T
Registered and paid up capital of
US$3,600,000

T RE HE 3,384,005
Registered and paid up capital of
US$3,384,000

i RE &% 2,050,000%T0
Registered and paid up capital of
US$2,050,000

i RESER 200000057
Registered and paid up capital of
HK$2,000,000

it RE&AAR300,000% 7T
Registered and paid up capital of
US$300,000

R=B=1-A
fERERAL
Percentage
of equity
interest held
as at 31 March

-1

2015

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

il

2014

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EEERER
Type of legal entity

IEER

Principal activities

SETRRERLA EpwlE it

Wholly foreign-owned Distribution of electronic
enterprise components

IE2ERRLR HERTER

Wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing of electronic
enterprise products

NE2ERRLA HEETER

Wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing of electronic
enterprise products

NELERRLA HERTER

Wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing of electronic
enterprise products

IRV LN HETRED

Wholly foreign-owned Manufacture of electric
enterprise wires

NE2ERRLT ERwiniis:

Wholly foreign-owned Distribution of electronic
enterprise components

NE2ERRLA ERwin it s

Wholly foreign-owned Distribution of electronic
enterprise components
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37. HH

B2F E’J?ﬁﬁ&@l&[‘ﬁ% 37.
DNEFRE —

NCIIC

ARAL/RUBY
Place of TELERY
AR incorporation/ Principal place
Company establishment of operation
RiEsERR2)
Interests held indirectly (continued)
Daiwa Distrioution (B.C.) Inc. NIEYNEET I EIN
British Columbia, Canada
Canada
Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc. JIEYN-oN S nex
Ontario, Canada Canada
Daiwa Holdings Inc. NERZARE nex
Ontario, Canada Canada

Bt

i) ERAINARBZHBRR  DARBES
RAGEEEERSEARBAFREAE
ERER IFALEERBHEEFELZ
MERR ERBEGCHBRARZER &
ZERRBBRITE

(ii) &K%‘}Ekﬁﬁ@/‘ﬁﬁ?nx%&{f/iﬁﬁfﬂi
HEZESE RIETERBRREESREF
100,000,000,000,000 7 7T °

(iii) BE_ZT-AFER-_FT-WF=A=+—H
LFFEERMBA —Jﬁﬁfiﬂaiéﬁz{ﬁ%éf
& o

(iv) REAZMAR L EEARTEEXEIA
A% BEFEENRARPXEEBREREX -
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31 March 2015

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continueq)

R=B=1-A
i RER AL
Percentage
BRTRARRE of equity
Issued and interest held  EEEEER ITER
fully paid up capital as at 31 March  Type of legal entity Principal activities
“8-1 2.
2015 2014
300000717 100%  100% BREFAA HERAHERERR
(AD300,000 Limited liability company ETER
Sales and distribution
of computer and
electronic products
700,000,170 100%  100% AREMAF HERAHERERR
CAD700,000 Limited liability company ETEm
Sales and distribution
of computer and
electronic products
2230157 100%  100% EREFARA RERR
CAD223,015 Limited liability company Investment holding
Notes:

(i)

(i

(iii

(iv)

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors and the Group’s management,
principally contributed the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result in
particulars of excessive length.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, and are not entitled
to any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000 billion
has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

The English names of the group companies incorporated in Mainland China
represent the best effort by the directors in translating its Chinese name as
they do not have official English names.
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38.

39.

Eﬁ /Lél\

RAFE  SEEEMMEREFHIKREERS
A H)HKS21,862,000 ° KARIEERHRE
BE_T-AF=A=1T—HIFEZRHERK

B o
N

R-E-—MFEF=A=+—HLEFEARRALA
S /)ﬁéﬂxg @

FREALRS

RZZE—HF=HA=+—H ' Leading Trade
lelted&Chlna Capital Holdings Investment
Limited 2 BIZEB RA R 17.42% (Z T —H4F :
17.42%) % 30.64% (= Z — M4 : 30.64%) A%
o EMEIR R HARARESRFEE LA KK
Bk A 1 - AL FIRAR R AR EIRAL -

MAREREFTEETIEAR ZEAKBHEL
%ﬁéﬁ%’]ﬁ%i?ﬁ%%ﬁ%—ﬁEI’JBM%%D,Z&a R
ﬁék%‘iﬂiﬁzjwﬁﬁ’]\ s AR EMZ

HEARNBEATE E'JE%HZ\%K’E@E’]E
Efﬁ BEAL c BREEALAIAZEARERE -

B BRI RBEEALTERS
AEERBEALTNAEEBRIILNENH
BALRZGURBEANLR ZELEN BRI
LU

38.

39.

31 March 2015

DIVIDENDS

During the year, the Company declared and paid a special dividend of
HK 5 cents per share totalling approximately HK$21,862,000. No final
dividend was proposed by the Company’s directors for the year ended
31 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, no dividends were declared and
paid by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2015, Leading Trade Limited and China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited owned 17.42% (2014: 17.42%) and 30.64% (2014:
30.64%) of the Company’s shares, respectively. These companies are
Lau Tak Wan and

Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, who are collectively regarded as the ultimate

under the control of the Company’s directors, Mr.

controlling parties.

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or any
member of its key management personnel or their close family members
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over
the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the parties are subject to common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of business between the Group
and its related parties and the balances arising from related party
transactions in addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
in the financial statements.

(a) HEBEALZRS (a) Transactions with related parties
&8
Group

—_E—FH —Z£—q

2015 2014

Jiikza FET FHET

Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
NEEHERSR Operating lease rental paid to

361 Alden Inc. 361 Alden Inc. (i) 1,139 1,331
KiaE - Note:

i) 361 Alden Inc. %158 5 £ R BR 5T (i) 361 Alden Inc. is beneficially owned by Mr Lau Tak Wan and Ms

Bzt(ARAEE)XLRAES - & Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, directors of the Company. Operating lease

EREREAET AR BHERE -

rental expense is determined at rate mutually agreed between the
parties.
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39. FRAEALXZ 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) EEERE A LeREE (b) Balances with related parties
AT
Company
—ZE—-h —ZT
2015 2014
Hiat FET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
PRI B 1 R 5k IE Amounts due from subsidiaries
(H1a£37) (Note 37) (i) 118,884 140,542

et - Note:

) RHERFARES AR - 0
FERmETNRER  £2BE

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and non-
interest bearing, and have no fixed terms of repayment. These

BEHRBTT ° amounts are denominated in HK$.
(c) FTEEEAB RN (c) Key management compensation
£H
Group
—Z2—-1 —Z—
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE K2R Salaries and allowances 6,830 6,972
TEAT Bonuses - 50
BIRERA — FEREEFETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 295 283
7,125 7,305
40. #£EHHIAEEIF 40. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

N-_ZE—FENMA_-_+hB @ BBEELE - PR On 29 April 2015, Mr. Lau Tak Wan, Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, together

BT EREEH 2 ARRE=ERTEIF
M BB - LAZ275,957,000 7% T 4B HE
H2EBEARARA55.17% K5 o

RA - 2IEEMRESN—HIBEARBFTE
HERBEGZ NHESENEFLatR
BHEMSHES URBETHEEDEZA
Al o WA R AR - MEBESEZH
R MBI RR AR T RS
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with the entities controlled by them entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of their entire equity
interest in the Company representing 55.17% of the Company’s shares
at a consideration of approximately HK$275,957,000.

On the same date, an entity controlled by Mr. Lau entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the Company in respect of the disposal of the
Group’s business of distribution of electronic components and computer
products, and certain property holding entities. These two agreements
are inter-conditional to each other. The whole arrangement is still subject
to approval from independent shareholders and the relevant regulatory
bodies.
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RSBEERNBRE FARSHRAEHAN
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MBEREFSARESS ’A$Y%ﬁﬁ
ﬁ%&&ﬁﬁ%@&%ZlﬂT FEH AR

ﬁﬁ%éiZ%ﬁ%Eﬁﬁéﬁi%%ﬁﬁz
REBRERTE  HARRLIZEZRAAA
THAEHRTS -

3. R AR E

EFERAET ERRZRRT  EEGA2%
BIEREBFBEMNSERSEERRIETX(4)
BRETE 2 ERZ AR RBRND 2 EAHE -

REBEREZQRAEE (RS IEEETABE
BBREZEIHEEZIARNAERZRER
2 VEREEHZEE-+T—21)BZHA
DA EEREERSEERR  ERNEAA
HieEtim TR F R LB B ERR 2
BHNZRER2EEESTBERAERZEE (A
REERE)R  ZBOM AR

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has, in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), adopted the
New Share Option Scheme, as approved by the Shareholders of the Company at
the Annual General Meeting held on 30 August 2013.

A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme is set out as
below:

1. Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant Options to selected Eligible Participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group or
any Invested Entity. The Company considers that the Invested Entity, an
entity in which the Group holds an equity interest, may contribute to the
Group’s profits. The Company also considers that the granting of the
Options to the employee, director, officer or consultant of the Invested
Entity would provide an incentive for their contribution to the Invested
Entity which indirectly benefits the Group.

2. Administration of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board whose decision on all matters arising in relation to this Scheme
or its interpretation or effect shall (save as otherwise provided herein and
in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding on all persons who
may be affected thereby.

3. Grant and acceptance of Options

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, invite any Eligible Participant to take up
Options to subscribe for Shares at a price calculated in accordance with
paragraph (4) below.

An offer of the grant of an Option shall be made to Eligible Participants
in writing (and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board
may from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no such offer shall
be open for acceptance after the earlier of the 10th anniversary of the
Adoption Date or the termination of the New Share Option Scheme or
the Eligible Participant to whom such offer is made has ceased to be an
Eligible Participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Grant and acceptance of Options (continued)

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an Option. An Option shall be deemed to
have been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of
the Option duly signed by the Eligible Participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Any offer of the grant of an Option may be accepted in respect of less
than the number of Shares in respect of which it is offered provided that
it is accepted in such number of Shares as represents a board lot for
the time being for the purpose of trading on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof.

Exercise of Options and Price of Shares

An Option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee giving
notice in writing to the Company stating that the Option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.
Each such notice must be accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the subscription price for the Shares in respect of which the
notice is given. Within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of the notice
and the remittance and, where appropriate, receipt of the certificate of
the Company’s auditors or independent financial advisers, the Company
shall allot and issue the relevant Shares to the grantee (or his legal
personal representative(s)) credited as fully paid.

Holders of the Options are not entitled to voting, dividend, transfer and
other rights of the holders of the Shares, including those arising on a
liquidation of the Company, save as otherwise provided herein or under
the relevant laws or the memorandum of association of the Company
and the Bye-laws in effect from time to time. Shares to be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of an Option will be subject to all the provisions
of the Bye-laws for the time being in force and will rank pari passu in
all respects with the existing fully paid Shares in issue on the date on
which the Option is duly exercised or, if that date falls on a day when
the register of members of the Company is closed, the first day of
the re-opening of the register of members (the “Exercise Date”) and
accordingly will entitle the holders thereof to participate in all dividends or
other distributions paid or made on or after the Exercise Date other than
any dividend or other distribution previously declared or recommended
or resolved to be paid or made if the record date therefor shall be before
the Exercise Date. A Share allotted upon the exercise of an Option
shall not carry voting rights until the name of the grantee has been duly
entered onto the register of members of the Company as the holder
thereof.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

4.

Exercise of Options and Price of Shares (continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option Scheme

may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any

event will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the

Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of

the Stock Exchange on the Offer Date, which must be a Business Day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily

quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business Days

immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (i) the nominal value of the
Share on the Offer Date.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

(i)

(ii

Subject to the Listing Rules, the overall limit on the number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30 per cent. of the relevant class of
Shares in issue from time to time. No Options may be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit being
exceeded.

Subject to the limit mentioned in (5)(i) above, the maximum
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
Options to be granted at any time under the New Share Option
Scheme shall not, when aggregated with any Shares subject to
any other share option schemes of the Company involving the
issue or grant of option over Shares by the Company to, or for
the benefit of the Eligible Participants, exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of the approval of the New Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained pursuant to sub-paragraphs (iii) and
(iv) below. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
New Share Option Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue (continued)

(iii) Subject to the limit mentioned in (5)(i) above, the Company may
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time subject to approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting, provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution. Options
previously granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised Options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the this limit. The Company must send a circular to
the Shareholders containing such information as required under
the Listing Rules.

(iv) Subject to the limit mentioned in (5)(i) above, the Company may
also seek separate approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit
provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate
Limit are granted only to Eligible Participants specifically identified
by the Company before such approval is sought. The Company
must send a circular to the Shareholders containing a generic
description of the specified Eligible Participants, the number and
terms of Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options
to the specified Eligible Participants with an explanation as to
how the terms of the Options serve such purpose and such other
information as required under the Listing Rules.

Grant of Options to connected persons or any of their associates

Any grant of Option to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, under the New Share Option Scheme must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding an
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed grantee of the
Option). Where any grant of Options to a substantial Shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates, would result in
the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of all Options already
granted or to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant:

(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per cent. of the relevant class
of Shares in issue; and
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

6.

Grant of Options to connected persons or any of their associates
(continued)

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,
such further grant of Options must be approved by Shareholders
of the Company.

A circular must be prepared by the Company explaining the proposed
grant, disclosing (i) the number and terms of the Options to be granted,
(i) containing a recommendation from the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director who is a
grantee) on whether or not to vote in favour of the proposed grant, (iii)
containing information relating to any Directors who are trustees of the
scheme or have a direct or indirect interest in the trustees, and (iv) the
information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing Rules.

Any change in the terms of Options granted to a connected person or its
associates must be approved by Shareholders in a general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each Eligible Participant or grantee (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Where
it is proposed that any offer is to be made to an Eligible Participant (or
where approximate, an existing grantee) which would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the twelve (12)-month period up to and including the relevant
date of grant to exceed such limit, such offer and any acceptance
thereof must be conditional upon Shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such Eligible Participant (or where appropriate, an existing
grantee) and his, her or its associates abstaining from voting. The
Company must send a circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity
of the Eligible Participant or grantee, the number and terms of options to
be granted (and options previously granted) to such Eligible Participant,
the information required under the Listing Rules. The number and terms
(including the subscription price) of options to be granted to such
Eligible Participant must be fixed before the date on which Shareholders’
approval is sought and the date of the Board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

8.

10.

Time of Exercise of Options

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, an Option may
be exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the
time of making an Offer provided that such period shall not exceed
the period of 10 years from the date of grant of the particular Option
but subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period”).

There is no specific minimum period under the New Share Option
Scheme for which an Option must be held or the performance target
which must be achieved before an Option can be exercised under the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme.

Period of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the New Share Option
Scheme become unconditional, after which no further Options will
be issued, and thereafter for so long as there are outstanding any
unexercised Options granted pursuant thereto and in order to give effect
to the exercise of any such Options or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme.

The life of the New Share Option Scheme
The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 29 August 2023,

subject to approval by shareholders to adopt the New Share Option
Scheme at the annual general meeting.
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